% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @
N\

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee A

To: Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
Barker, D'Agorne, Doughty, Kilbane, Fisher, Looker,
Melly and Waudby
Date: Thursday, 3 November 2022
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West
Offices (F045)
AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have
not already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.
2. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to
2 working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 1
November 2022.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.



http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings

b)

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast, including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 36)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meetings of the Planning
Committee A held on 4 August 2022, 8 September 2022 and 5
October 2022.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster (Pages 37 -72)
Business Park Harwood Road Upper
Poppleton [21/02804/FULM]

Extension to warehouse (B8 Use with ancillary office/welfare space)
with service yard, vehicular and cycle parking, and landscaping [Rural
West York Ward]

Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster (Pages 73 -110)
Business Park Harwood Road Upper
Poppleton [22/01555/FULM]

Extension to Pavers facility to provide office space with associated
car parking and landscaping [Rural West York Ward]

Former Gas Works Heworth Green York (Pages 111 -138)
[22/01281/REMM]

Reserved matters application for details of appearance and
landscaping for Zone B [Guildhall Ward]


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

5. Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer
Angela Bielby
Contact details:
e Telephone: 01904 552599
e Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMESIRMEEEISS (cantonese)
g3 ®T AR e o T (TS SN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze byC dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
-J’o’t L () e Tl (Urdu)
T (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 4 August 2022

Present Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair),

Ayre, Fisher, Looker, Waudby, Rowley (Substitute
for Cllr Doughty), Crawshaw (Substitute for Clir
Melly) [until 19:08], Baker (Substitute for Clir
D'Agorne), Fenton (Substitute for Clir Barker) and
Lomas (Substitute for CllIr Kilbane)

In Attendance Becky Eades (Head of Planning and Development
Services)
Heidi Lehane (Senior Solicitor)
Erik Matthews (Development Management Officer)
Alison Stockdale (Development Management
Officer)

Apologies Councillors D’Agorne, Doughty, Kilbane, Melly and
Barker

13. Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting, any personal
interests, not included on the Register of Interests, or any prejudicial or
disclosable pecuniary interests they may have in respect of business on the
agenda. In respect of agenda items 4b [Oak Haven, 144 Acomb Road,
York, YO24 4HA [22/00304/FULM] and 4c [York Wheelchair Centre,
Bluebeck House, Bluebeck Drive, York YO30 5RA [22/00707/FULM], ClIr
Rowley noted his profession as a Funeral Director. There were no further
declarations of interest.

14. Minutes

Resolved:
I.  That the minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee A held
on 7 July 2022 be approved and then signed by the Chair as a
correct record.

ii.  That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2022 be
approved and then signed by the Chair as a correct record
subject amending ClIr Daubeney substituting for Clir Waudby,



Page 2

and the second sentence of the second paragraph under
Declarations of Interest being amended to ‘Clir D’Agorne noted
that Lars Kramm, a registered speaker for the planning
application was previously on the Green Group.’

15. Public Participation

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A. Johnny Hayes explained that when
CYC developed its own projects there had been serious public concern
about how these were handled in the planning process. He added that the
ombudsman had expressed concern regarding planning. He noted his
concerns regarding a number of aspects in the determination of planning
applications. In respect of the National Railway Museum central hall
application on being considered at the meeting, he noted that flaws in the
planning system that were behind the public outrage to the application.

16. Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development Services, relating to the following planning applications,
outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out
the views of consultees and officers.

The Chair explained that agenda items 4b Oak Haven, 144 Acomb Road,
York, YO24 4HA (22/00304/FULM) and 4c York Wheelchair Centre,
Bluebeck House, Bluebeck Drive, York YO30 5RA (22/00707/FULM) would
be taken ahead of agenda item 4a Railway Museum, Leeman Road, York
(21/02793/REMM) due to the number of public speakers registered on that
application. Clir Crawshaw recorded his strong objection to the reordering
of the agenda. He explained that he had informed the Chair on Monday
that week that he would only be available as substitute for Clir Melly in
order to conclude the business of the previously deferred National Railway
Museum item. He stated that due to the reordering of the agenda he would
almost certainly now be precluded from taking part in the decision on the
NRM application and expressed deep unhappiness at the way this had
been handled.

17. Oak Haven, 144 Acomb Road, York, YO24 4HA [22/00304/FULM]
[16:40]



Page 3

Members considered a major full application from St Marys (North
Yorkshire) Ltd for the erection of 64 bedroom residential care home (use
class C2) with associated structures, access, parking and landscaping
following demolition of existing structures at Oak Haven, 144 Acomb Road,
York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a presentation on
the application.

Public Speakers

Cllr K Taylor (Ward Member) spoke in support of the application. He noted
the disappointment of the Ward Councillors in looking at different options
for the site. He noted concern regarding the loss of trees and increase in
parking demand.

Tim Ross, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support of the application. He
detailed the increase in demand for care beds and outlined why the
location was good for a care home. He noted the high quality of the design
and that there were no objections to the application. In response to
Member questions, he explained that:
e The two disabled parking spaces and EV charging spaces had been
worked through with highways officers.
¢ Residents would tend to be end of life care and high dependency.
e The repurposing of the building and been looked at and found to be
unsuitable for the needs of the people in the care home.
e The private garden on the frontage was a key part of the design and
there would be a visitor café area.
e All residents on the ground floor would have access to the outdoor
space.
e The bedrooms would be to rent.
e The room sizes were in excess of CQC room sizes were comparable
to other care home rooms offered around the city.
e The types of trees and planting.

Following debate, CllIr Fenton moved the officer recommendation to
approve the application. This was seconded by ClIr Looker and following a
unanimous vote in favour it was;

Resolved: That the application be approved.

Reason: Oak Haven comprises a disused brick built care home dating to
the late 1960s with a substantial frontage on to York Road to
the north east of the Acomb District Centre. Planning
permission is sought for the erection of a three storey brick built
64 bedroom care home with a pitched roof following on from the



Page 4

demolition of the existing structures on site. The existing built
footprint would be broadly followed in terms of the new
construction. It is felt that the proposal would provide much
needed specialist elderly residential care to part remedy
existing deficiencies. It would provide a sensitive design
solution for a visually sensitive location in street scene terms. It
would make appropriate use of landscaping both for the
amenity of residents and the amenity of the wider area and it
seeks to minimise parking off site in the surrounding area. The
proposal is therefore felt to comply with the policies of the
NPPF and the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

18. York Wheelchair Centre, Bluebeck House, Bluebeck Drive, York
YO30 5RA [22/00707/FULM] [17:00]

Members considered a major full application from Torsion Care (York)
Limited And NHS Property Services Ltd for the erection of 72no. bedroom
care home (use class C2) with associated landscaping following demolition
of Blue Beck House and outbuildings at York Wheelchair Centre, Bluebeck
House, Bluebeck Drive, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a presentation on
the application. The Development Management Officer gave an update
advising that there had been additional consultation with the housing
strategy team who had no objections. There had also been a revision to
condition 2 — plans.

Public Speakers

lan Ward, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support of the application. He
explained that the Applicant, Torsion Care, would develop, build and
operate the care home. It would bring jobs to the local economy and would
be a fit for future care home. He explained how it would be operated. He
noted there was a lack of care beds and the energy efficiency measures of
the application. He was asked and explained that it was unlikely that
residents would have cars and the spaces provided were for visitors and
staff.

Officers were asked and confirmed that there was nothing to stop the
operators of the care home saying that residents could not have a room if
they had a car. It was also confirmed that the PU panels had come as an
offer from the applicant.

During debate ClIr noted a non-prejudicial interest as an employee of the
NHS. Clir Baker proposed the officer recommendation to approve the



Page 5

application with the revision to condition 2 - plans. This was seconded by
Cllr Pavlovic and following a unanimous vote it was;

Resolved:

Reason:

Reasons:
I

That the application be approved subject to the conditions in the
report and revised condition 2: Plans

Condition 2: Plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the following plans and other submitted details:

Location plan

Proposed elevations 3165-HIA-01-XX-DR-A-0301 P04, 3165-
HIA-01-XX-DR-A-0302 P5 and 3165-HIA-01-XX-DR-A-0303 P3
Proposed floor plans 3165-HIA-01-00-DR-A-0201 P5, 3165-
HIA-01-01-DR-A-0211 P5 and 3165-HIA-01-02-DR-A-0221 P5
Proposed roof plan 3165-HIA-01-03-DR-A-2701 P4

Proposed site plan 3165-HIA-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0103-P8

Proposed landscape plan R3-509-03-LA-01C

Proposed boundary treatment plan 3165-HIA-ZZ-XX-DR-A-
0107-P2

For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development
Is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Detailed issues related to the design and form of the building,
access, landscaping, and biodiversity have been resolved and
are considered to comply with relevant policies. In addition,
issues of neighbouring residential amenity are considered to be
addressed in the design and siting of the building is relation to
existing properties. The proposal complies fully with the
requirements of policy H9 in relation to older persons
accommodation in meeting an identified need, being well
designed and in an accessible location by public transport.

The site falls within the general extent of the Green Belt and the
scheme is considered to be inappropriate by definition.
However, officers consider that the proposed very special
circumstances are sufficient to outweigh the harm to the Green
Belt through inappropriateness and other identified harm,
including the loss of the non-designated heritage asset, in
accordance with para.148 of the NPPF. It is particularly noted
that there is a significant need for older persons
accommodation in the city. In addition, the site is identified,



Page 6

within the evidence base documents for the draft Local Plan, as
not serving any Green Belt purpose and is therefore intended to
be removed from the Green Belt following adoption of the Local
Plan.

lii. The proposal is considered to comply with relevant policies of
the draft Local Plan and represents an appropriate re-use of
this brown field site.

[The meeting adjourned from 17:10 to 17:18]

19. Railway Museum, Leeman Road, York [21/02793/REMM] [17:19]

Members considered a major reserved matters application from the Board
of Trustees of The Science Museum for the layout, scale, appearance,
landscaping and access for the construction of Central Hall (F1 use class)
including entrance hall, exhibition space and café with associated access,
parking, landscaping and external works following the demolition of the
mess room and other structures pursuant to 18/01884/OUTM at the
Railway Museum, Leeman Road, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services reported that the
application had been deferred. The Senior Solicitor advised that Section
149 of the Equality Act 2010 (Public Sector Equality Duty) provided that the
Council in exercising its functions (which includes the functions exercised
by the Council as Local Planning Authority), shall have due regard to the
need to-
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited under the Equality Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

The protected characteristics set out in Section 4 of the Equality Act were:
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation. She advised that having due regard means consciously
thinking about the three aims of the PSED (set out above) as part of the
process of decision-making. She added that there is no duty to achieve a
particular outcome.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a presentation on
the application. It was confirmed that the applicant had provided



Page 7

information to officers that outlined the accessibility features of the
application. This included the details on, car parking, access routes and
vertical circulation, the legibility and ease of use, and internal
museum route.

Public Speakers

Flick Williams spoke in objection to the application. She noted the focus
on the Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) was there to identify and
mitigate harm and she expressed concern about the walkway
agreement. She did not feel reassured that NRM staff would assist
people through the central hall, and she suggested that some people
may be retraumatised by having their bags searched. She was also not
assured of the improvements to the riverside path, and she expressed
concern regarding social isolation of elderly and disabled residents.

In answer to Member questions, Flick Williams explained:

e Her concern for people with multiple impairments and the impact
of a lot of people moving in different directions in the central hall.

e People who are non-verbal would find it difficult to move to speak
to staff.

e That the EIA did not meet due regard to items b) and c) of the
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (Public Sector Equality Duty).
She also asked where the evidence of consultation was for people
with protected characteristics.

e The EIA should have been done at the beginning of the process.

e The application was being treated in different stages and the walkway
agreement should have been considered with the application.

e |t was not her expertise to offer a different design to that of the red
line.

Kate Ravilious spoke in objection to the application. She explained that
she had received a review of the EIA, undertaken by Helen Kane
(professional, qualified access consultant and surveyor, and director of
Access Included). The document highlighted serious concerns over how
the EIA had been produced and it suggested that the EIA had not met
the requirements of the Equalities Act. She listed a number of concerns
regarding the EIA noting that there hadn’t been one at previous stages
of the application, that no equalities outcomes had been listed in it and
the mitigations in the EIA were not reasonable.

In response to Member questions, Kate Ravilious and Helen Kane noted
that:
e The statement of community involvement would include
consultation with people with protected characteristics.



Page 8

e There was no provision for alternative formats for the consultation
documents. It was expected that the consultation would be
undertaken at regional and national levels with groups of people
with protected characteristics.

¢ No evidence of an EIA was found in previous decisions regarding
the closure of Leeman Road

e The officer with responsibility for the EIA should have had suitable
training and there were concerns regarding a lack of training.

e |t was normal for the EIA to be considered at the early and to be
carried out by the local authority.

e The report produced was based on a paper assessment and the
application information available online. Kate Ravilious and Helen
Kane confirmed they would be happy to share the report.

e |t would be possible to have a walkway through the site 24 hours a
day, 7 days a week where there was a staff only route. There were
other options regarding going around the site and the public had
put forward different access arrangements.

e The safety of access 24 hours a day, 7 days a week through an
empty building needed further exploration. The Rijksmuseum in
Amsterdam was cited as an example of good access
arrangements.

Jamie Wood spoke in objection to the application on behalf of York
Cycle Campaign. He explained that the plans would curtail access
arrangements and would impact the greatest on vulnerable people. He
added that the EIA should not be based on when the museum is open
and noted that the walkway agreement was integral to the application.
He noted the NPPF priority to pedestrians, CYC to be net zero by 2030,
the CYC active travel policy and cycling provision in LTN 1/20.

David Finch spoke in objection to the application. He noted the impact of
the two year construction phase of the development on travelling on routes
through the site. He asked Members to consider the needs of vulnerable
residents on the ‘island’ and suggested that riverside improvements must
take place before construction, adding that there could be a Grampian
condition for this. He was asked and demonstrated where the ‘island’ was,
noting that it was isolated in connectivity. He noted that some people avoid
using the riverside route and he explained the routed that could be taken.
He was asked and clarified that riverside improvements be made during the
NRM (not York Central) construction phase.

Paul Clarke (Director of St. Peter's Quarter Residents Association Ltd)
spoke in objection to the application. He noted that the EIA did not
materially change the decision made. He stated that the application did
not consider paragraph 132 of the NPPF as the NRM has not worked



Page 9

closely with residents. He added that the walkway agreement was
agreed without consulting residents and that there was no democratic
oversight of the agreement. He noted that the application did not
address sustainable transport and other policies within the NPPF. In
response to a question from a Member regarding engagement from the
NRM he explained that nothing had changed, and he had tried to
engage the NRM with no response. He added that the NRM workshops
were information telling to residents.

Anne Norton spoke in objection to the application on behalf of York
Disability Rights Forum. She noted that the EIA did not address the
stopping up order. She expressed concern regarding delays in travelling
through the central hall because of bag searches and she outlined reasons
why some people may avoid that route because of the distress caused.
She added that the EIA contained no alternative routes and explained how
it breached human rights.

[At this point in the meeting, CllIr Crawshaw noted that his mother was a
member of the York Disability Rights Forum steering group].

In answer to Member questions, Anne Norton explained that:

¢ Regarding the route through the building there was a fatigue element
for people with disabilities and there was a compound of factors
impacting this, including planning routes around the building.

e There was concern regarding assurances that there would be a
member of staff being available in the central hall.

e |t was hoped there would be a 24 hour route through and a rethink of
the design.

Roger Pierce spoke in objection to the application on behalf of WalkYork on
the proposed alternative pedestrian routes. He was confident that there
was an alternative route that could go through the building. He noted that
an alternative route for the residents for St Peter's Square was needed as
they would be anxious about the route proposed. He also expressed
concern about safety due to no buildings overlooking the route. He was
asked and demonstrated an alternative route.

Clir K Taylor (Ward Member) spoke in objection to the application on
behalf of residents He noted that the EIA showed problems with the
application, and he expressed concerns about the walkway agreement.
He added that the application did not meet outline approval of there
being access through the site being directly and freely available in
perpetuity. He noted that condition 45 did not limit the opening hours.
He stated that the NRM must be forced to address the high level of
objection. In response to Member questions, he explained that:



Page 10

e He had been told that the walkway agreement could not be
amended and had been told at the public inquiry that it was for
information only.

e There had been no formal consultation with the Ward Committee
and as Ward Councillors they had tried to proactive in engaging
with residents. He noted that the 2018/9 petition focused on
pedestrian and cycle access and received over 1600 signatures.

e There had been a briefing with highways officers about the
application

e The amending of the walkway agreement needed to be done
democratically, and it was material to the planning application.

e There had been a meeting with the NRM that Tuesday morning at
which there had been areas of disagreement and the NRM had
given reasons for not being able to have a 24/7 route. He noted
that Ward Councillors had offered £10k of Ward Committee
funding to look at a redesign.

e Officers had not been in contact regarding the EIA.

Cllr Heaton (Ward Member) spoke in objection to the application on
behalf of residents. He asked how those with additional need would be
informed of the route through the site, and how disabled people, would
be notified of closures during working hours. He listed a number of
concerns about the walkway agreement, and he noted that the was
significant harm caused by the application and requested deferral of it.

[The meeting adjourned 18:50 to 19:03]

Clir Crawshaw explained that for personal reasons he needed to leave
the meeting. He requested that all Members consider very carefully the
application and York Central on York. He noted that he was worried
about reputational damage to the NRM. He highlighted paragraph 132
of the NPPF on consultative design and was concerned that this had
not been met. He added that the NRM had step free access between
the sites. He noted thar there was a problem with signage wand he was
concerned regarding signage for getting through the building from one
side to another. He stated that the decision needed to be right for the
city, the people who live there and the organisations within it. He
proposed that if approved, that the Committee add a Grampian
condition regarding the riverside walkway, and he proposed that as a
condition. He also suggested the addition of a condition regarding staff
being available to help people through the building.

[ClIr Crawshaw left the meeting at 19:08]



Page 11

Judith McNicol (Director of the National Railway Museum) and Emily Yates
(Mima — accessibility consultant) spoke in support of the application on
behalf of the applicant. Judith McNicol explained that the focus of the
meeting was the reason for the deferral for the EIA and the EIA was an
officer assessment. She noted that as Director of the museum she took the
issues with access for the residents very seriously. Emily Yates then
explained that there were 14 disabled parking bays and noted that design
of them. She detailed the widths of the walkway noting that it exceeded
disabled guidance. She added that there was a 2m level change at the
western side of the building which was a stepped and sloped route ata 1 in
20 gradient. She explained wayfinding around and inside the centra hall
noting that NRM staff members would be on hand to help. She explained
that there had been consultation with people with lived experience and the
user group had provided feedback.

In response to Member questions Judith McNicol and Emily Yates
explained that:

e CYC officers did the EIA.

e There had been consultation with the lived experience user group.

e The inclusive design standard was an aspirational document for the
NRM and was in utilisation. It was an internal document and they
would be prepared to submit it and documents in the public domain. It
was not a part of the planning submission.

[At this point the Head of Planning and Development Services noted that it
had been taken into account as part of the design and access statement]

e The bulk of the user group workshop was as visitors to the museum.

e The difficulty if design versus operation came down to staff
availability and training. The design tried to address that conflict in
the drum. The museum had spoken to the architect regarding light
reflectance values, surfaces, and finishes. They had also worked
with the wayfinding team on tactile signage. There was the
opportunity for QR codes to be on signs.

e As part of the consultation, they had engaged with the SNAPPY
trust regarding the wonderlab design. They had not talked to the
York Disability Rights Forum and would be willing to do so.

e Regarding a potential bottleneck when entering the central hall, it
was important to understand peak times at the museum. The peak
times were explained.

e The user group noted the differentiation between the lobby and
the drum and noted the importance of staff availability. The user
group had also been consulted on the queuing system and this
had not yet been agreed.

e There were two separate doors for entry and egress.



Page 12

¢ Regarding information on the central hall through route being
open, MIMA had been appointed to look at tis and the website
facilities would be used to show when the museum was open.
There had been an internal appointment at the NRM who would be
looking at the website.

e Level access had been a major part of the planning applications. It
was noted that the public feedback on the bridge and tunnel as
part of the consultation om 2017 had not been positive.

e The routes exceeded access compliance.

¢ As a wheelchair user, Emily Yates noted that Leeman Road was
not good for access. She added that the current route was not
without its challenges.

e The level differences did not easily allow for a route over the top
and the police designing out crime officer did not like people being
on their own for a period of time.

e The bag checking was as a result of police advice and in the 17
years that Judith McNichol had worked at the museum there had
been no bag checking. If this was required, an alert would be put
in place.

e There was an additional 394m length to walk and cycle on the
diversionary route. As a wheelchair user, Emily Yates would need
to understand the access and lighting of the route to judge what
the effect of this was.

e The alternative route as part of the stopping up order and the
alternative highway route had been approved. The alternative
route was explained,

e Regarding looking at a way of providing access 24 hours a day,
the comments of the police designing out crime officer needed to
be taken into account.

[The Head of Planning and Development Services clarified that the
distance from points F to B was 372m]

e The entry charges for the museum had been removed in 1997. If
this was changed by the government, the walkway agreement
would need to be looked at.

e It was believed that the central hall would be used as a walk
through. Th importance of wayfinding was noted.

e The design of the walkway had been taken into account in
condition 45 of the outline planning permission.

e The police designing out crime officer said that certain features of
24 hour access were not acceptable. The was part of the officer’s
comments on a number of designs as part of the outline planning
permission in which they talked about features that isolated users



Page 13

and were mindful of the York Central masterplan. It was not known
if there was a reference to marble arch as part of those comments.
It was noted that the underpass was suggested that the
consultees did not favour it.

[The Head of Planning and Development Services advised that the
walkway agreement could not be considered as part of the application].

There had been work to revise the walkway design as a result of
consultation.

Members then asked further questions to officer to which they
responded that:

Sections 5.1 to 6.1 were recommendations that had been put
forward.

Regarding the suggestion to condition opening hours and staff
availability, the application did not relate to the rest of the
museum. It was not reasonable to condition those as it did not
meet the six tests.

Condition 45 conditioned the through hours of opening. There was
no material change due to condition 45 and it could not be revised
as it was part of the outline planning permission.

If the Committee did not make a decision the applicant could
appeal for non-determination, and it could go to a public inquiry.
It would not be reasonable to condition the riverside walkway
before building work start as there was an alternative route.

The report co-authors of the EIA had EIA training. The co-authors
wrote the EIA which was then reviewed by the Head of Service
and Assistant Directors.

Consultation for the EIA was done through the planning
consultation.

Staffing was identified as a mitigation. The inspector said that the
route through was a limited mitigation. Officers had not been
asked to consider additional mitigation.

An explanation was given on how Article of the Human Rights Act
would be triggered.

Following debate, Clir Ayre proposed the officer recommendation to
approve the application. This was seconded by ClIr Fisher. On being put
to the vote with five Members in favour and five against, with the Chair’s
casting vote to approve it was then;

Resolved: That the application be approved.



Reasons:
I

Page 14

The principle of development of the NRM site as part of the
wider York Central development was approved at outline stage
and the proposals put forward within these reserved matters
application are within the remits of the approved parameter
plans and design guide approved by Conditions 6 and 7.

The outline application was granted in the context that Leeman
Road would be stopped up and alternative routes provided
through the York Central site. The Stopping Up of Leeman
Road has been granted through a separate highway process.
As part of the Stopping Up a Walkway Agreement was
approved which set out operational matters with respect to
access through the museum. This reserved matters application
seeks approval for access and layout and the Council are
satisfied that the proposals provide an appropriate layout and
access to the site and accord with the Walkway Agreement.

The proposals are in line with what was accepted at outline
stage in terms of traffic generation, impact on the existing
highway network, alternative routes for pedestrians and cyclists
and parking provision. There are also sufficient measures in
place through conditions and the Section 106 attached at
outline stage in order to promote sustainable travel and this is
aligned with the Council’s transportation policies. The
proposals are therefore in accordance with the NPPF and Local
Plan Policies set out above.

With respect to heritage impacts, the Council are satisfied that
the proposals would not result in harm to designated heritage
assets on the site. It is recognised that delivery of Museum
Square would have provided more certainty with respect to the
setting of heritage assets however this is not with the control of
the NRM and the Council are satisfied that this will be
adequately addressed through a future reserved matters
scheme for this site. It is recognised that there will be loss of a
non-designated heritage asset, however the Applicants have
justified their approach to the design and loss of the mess
room. In addition, the application clearly sets out the significant
economic, social and cultural benefits derived from the scheme.
The Council therefore consider that the loss of this non
designated heritage asset is outweighed by the significant
benefits the proposals will bring not only to the City of York but
also as a cornerstone of the York Central development. With
respect to archaeology appropriate investigations have been



Page 15

undertaken as far as they can at this stage of the development
and is agreed that further investigations will be required once
more of the site becomes accessible. The Council and Historic
England are therefore satisfied that an appropriate approach to
archaeology is being taken.

v. The proposals provide a satisfactory layout, appearance, scale
and landscaping scheme which accord with the outline Design
Guide and would enhance the character and appearance of this
area. Whilst sustainability and designing out crime measures
have been set out, the full details of these measures will be
secured through subsequent discharge of conditions.

vi. The application includes an appropriate update in terms of
Impacts on habitats and protected species within the site which
remain in line with the OPA ES.

vii.  The Council are satisfied that the discharge of planning
conditions attached at outline stage can provide the detail
required to ensure that an appropriate drainage scheme is
incorporated into the site and that there would be no additional
impacts in terms of flood risk.

viii. The proposals are considered to be in accordance with the
OPA ES which accepted impacts with respect to air quality,
noise and contamination subject to mitigation and a series of
conditions to be discharged.

iX. The economic benefits arising from the scheme are recognised
and the contribution the proposals will make to the City are
supported by the Council’'s Economic Development Team.

CllIr Cullwick, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 9.12 pm].



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 8 September 2022

Present Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Ayre, D'Agorne,

Doughty, Kilbane, Fisher, Melly, Waudby, Crawshaw
(Substitute for Clir Looker), Douglas (Substitute fort
Cllr Pavlovic) and Fenton (Substitute for Clir Barker)

Becky Eades (Head of Planning and Development
In Attendance Services)

Ruhina Choudhury (Senior Solicitor)

Alison Stockdale (Development Management

Officer)

Apologies Councillors Pavlovic, Barker and Looker

19. Declarations of Interest (16:34]

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting, any personal
interests, not included on the Register of Interests, or any prejudicial or
disclosable pecuniary interests they may have in respect of business on the
agenda. In respect of agenda items 4a [Northern House, Rougier Street,
York [22/00098/FULM], ClIr Crawshaw noted that he was a Governor at
Scarcroft Primary School and Clir Doughty noted that his employer was a
tenant of Northern House. There were no further declarations of interest.

20. Minutes [16:35]

Cllrs Crawshaw and Melly noted a number of suggested amendments to
the minutes of the meeting held on 4 August 2002.

Resolved: That the approval of the minutes of the meeting held on 4
August 2022 be deferred.

Reason: In order to consider suggested amendments.



Page 18

21. Public Participation [16:42]

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.

22. Plans List [16:42]

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development Services, relating to the following planning applications,
outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out
the views of consultees and officers.

23. Northern House Rougier Street York [22/00098/FULM] [16:42]

Members considered a major full application from Rougier Street
Developments Ltd for the demolition of 1 - 9 Rougier Street and erection of
mixed use development including 153 apartments (Use Class C3), offices
(Use Class E), visitor attraction (Use Class F1), aparthotel with 88 rooms
(Use Class C1) with associated landscaping and public realm
improvements (resubmission) at Northern House, Rougier Street, York.

The Head of Planning and Development gave a presentation on the
application showing the existing site, views, elevations and 3D isometrics.
She advised that Members needed to base their decision on the scale plan.

An update was given to the committee, informing them of two additional
representations in relation to the bat survey being out of date and a request
for the full Financial Viability Assessment to be published, not just the
Executive Summary. There had also been additional consultations from the
Council’'s Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development
(Conservation) officer, Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development
(Ecology) officer, Design and Conservation and Sustainable Development
(Design) officer and Yorkshire Water, resulting in a number of additional
conditions being recommended. These were related to the biodiversity
enhancement plan and drawing, the lighting design plan and construction.

Public Speakers

Johnny Hayes spoke in objection to the application noting concerns
regarding harm to heritage and archaeology, the need for affordable
housing and disclosure on the Financial Viability Assessment. In response
to Member questions, he explained the need for the full FVA to be




Page 19

published and not just the Executive Summary. He was asked and
explained that he could not comment on what would change as a result of
seeing the full FVA until he had seen it.

Flick Williams spoke in objection to the application detailing concerns
regarding disabled access. She explained a number of problems with the
exterior of the building, issues with public transport infrastructure and size
of the flats and shared space.

Ken Smith spoke in objection to the application on behalf of the Council for
British Archaeology (CBA). He explained the CBA rationale for objecting to
the application on the grounds of harm to the central conservation area and
concern regarding the proposed approach to archaeology on the site thus
resulting in the CBA recommending refusal of the application. In answer to
Member questions, he explained that:

e The timescale and funding for the site needed to be sufficient and it
was not known what laid under that ground.

e The CBA perspective would be an evaluation of the site when the
building was dropped. He added at policies nationally and locally
were not being applied.

e There was a degree of assurance in that it was recognised that it was
not known what was under the site however but there were further
concerns which were explained.

¢ In accounting for the fundamental difference between the CBA and
York Archaeological Trust (YAT), it was noted that YAT were part of
the application. The CBA tried to take an objective view in context of
designated heritage assets and what was the best way forward.

¢ |If there were waterlogged remains, the site would be of international
interest.

Laurence Beardmore, President of the York & North Yorkshire Chamber of
Commerce spoke in support of the application on behalf of the Chamber on
the economic and business benefits of the scheme. These included
economic growth and the regeneration of that side of York. He added that
all occupiers of Northern House had leases ending by the end of the year
and the offices would be vacant by the end of the year. He added that there
was permitted development rights on the building and that the new
development would offer grade A office space. In response to Member
guestions, he noted that:
e The GVA was built over a number of years and was cumulative, and
there was a need to keep adding to the city.
e The office space could be converted into flats without planning
permission.



Page 20

Nick Rowe spoke in support of the application on the health and wellbeing
benefits of the archaeological dig. He explained the value of archaeology
on prescription and the mental health benefits of belonging to the team
doing the dig to York and through their contribution to discovery and
achievement.

At this point in the meeting, a Member expressed concern regarding the
number of registered speakers on behalf of the Applicant. The Chair stated
that the speakers on behalf of the Applicant would have 5 minutes to speak
combined.

Eamonn Keogh, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support of the application
on the planning case. Neil Brown, the architect for the application explained
that when the application was approved the previous year, the Applicant
listened to the comments of the committee and had worked with the council
design and conservation team and other stakeholders in changing the
design of the scheme. He detailed the changes noting that the design
included significant public realm improvements. He noted that the Applicant
would continue to work with stakeholders. David Jennings spoke on the
archaeological aspects of the case on behalf of the Applicant. He explained
that public engagement would run alongside the excavation of the site and
that the scheme would be focussed on ethe maximum delivery of publish
development.

Members then asked Eamonn Keogh and colleagues in attendance a
number of questions to which they responded that:

e The Tanners Moat end of the site represented challenges and the
reasons for moving the building were explained.

e The entrances and access arrangements were detailed.

e Concerning why the building was not accessible from all directions,
there was a need to be clear about how to enter the attraction
through the signposted routes on Tanners Moat and the glass atrium.

e The access from Tanners Moat to the public realm space was
explained. It was noted that each side of the building did have
access.

e Regarding how the building was accessible, this was part of the
detailed design stage and the Applicant was happy to have
conversations to address concerns about the design.

e Access was at the core of all attractions. They had worked with
MySight, The Hut and the Blueberry Academy and they would work
hard to make sure that everybody could access the attraction.

e The one and two bedroomed apartments were above space
standards and studio bedroom did not have national minimum space
standards.



Page 21

e There was no reception area and there was a mix of units of single
and double dwellings.

e The national minimum space standards started at one bedroom
dwellings. 60% of the flats were studios. The report stated that the flat
space sizes were considered acceptable.

e There would be a minimum let of a three month stay and in services
apartments there was an average stay of 18 months. The benefits for
tenants of services apartments included access to the gym and
restaurant. All apartments would be tenanted.

¢ |t was noted that the site was appropriate for high density.

e There was no level affordable housing in the apartment mix.

e The spaces in the scheme worked for a range of people and mix of
tenants.

e The cost of rent would depend on the size of the unit.

e The uplift in visitor numbers was explained and it was noted that the
attraction was three times as big as the Jorvik Viking Centre. It was
noted that the Roman period was popular and that the projected
visitor numbers were modest.

e Regarding displaying finds on the site, the design of the museum had
not been finalised. It was explained that they wanted residents to get
involved.

e Regarding significant finds on the site, this was about programming.
The timings were ambitious and the reality was about resourcing. The
estimations were based on long industry understanding. There was a
balance between conservation and discovery.

e There were different tests for designated assets and non-designated
assets and they would look at specific based assets known on the
area and area based assets. The complexity of the assessment of the
harm for the area was explained.

¢ Regarding not following CBA methodology, the YAT was following
industry methodology and would comply with the methodology of the
Chartered Institute of Archaeologists.

e Concerning the difference of opinion from the CBA and YAT, YAT
was interested as an educational institution in investigation. The
approaches regarding conservation and investigation were noted.

¢ In regard to the fuel used in the building, the building was designed
using available technology and it met the policy requirements of the
Draft Local Plan. The aim was to deliver low energy and a note was
made of the measures in place to deliver future proof solutions.

On the news of the death Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II, Members
unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting to consider the running of the
meeting and they left the meeting to deliberate.



Page 22

[The meeting adjourned from 18:33 to 18:42]

Members returned to the meeting. The Chair read out a statement on the
death of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth Il and all present were informed that
it was appropriate to discontinue and adjourn the meeting to a later date.

[The meeting adjourned at 18:44]



Page 23

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A
Date 5 October 2022 — Reconvened from meeting

adjournment on 8 September 2022

Present Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Ayre, D'Agorne,
Doughty, Kilbane, Fisher, Melly, Waudby, Crawshaw
(Substitute for Cllr Looker) and Douglas (Substitute
for Clir Pavlovic) and Fenton (Substitute for ClIr
Barker)

In Attendance Becky Eades (Head of Planning and Development
Services)
Ruhina Choudhury (Senior Solicitor)
Alison Stockdale (Development Management
Officer)

Apologies Councillors Pavlovic, Barker and Looker

24. Northern House Rougier Street York [22/00098/FULM]

The Head of Planning and Development Services noted that written
representations received following the meeting on 8 September 2022 and
the full Financial Viability Assessment (FVA) had been circulated to
Committee Members during the Adjournment Period. Concerning
paragraph 5.14 of the Committee Report, it was clarified that the scheme
would be fully electric. In response to a Member question regarding
lobbying, the Head of Planning and Development Services confirmed that
written representations had been accepted.

Members were given a precis of the meeting on 8 September, noting that
consideration had been given to access and space requirements, density,
visitor numbers, archaeology, and energy strategy (including air source
heat pumps, photovoltaic and heating). Questions to the Applicant then
resumed. The Agent for the Applicant and colleagues were asked and
clarified that:

e There was a variety of energy saving and sustainability measures in
the scheme. Due to the location of the site, it was not possible to use
photovoltaic and the scheme would be using air source heat pumps
and electric heating. It was noted that the air source heat pump would
increase the BREAMM rating and that it would located on a
compound on the roof.



Page 24

Concerning the possibility of valuable archaeological finds, the
applicants were relying on the experience of the archaeological team.
It was noted that Conditions 5 and 6 covered archaeology and there
was a degree of uncertainty with the archaeology with finds dealt with
as they occurred.

Regarding the FVA stating that the scheme was unviable, the
different types of viability assessments was explained. It was clarified
that there was £6million for the dig and that York Archaeological Trust
(YAT) had taken a 10 year view of it. It was further clarified that the
£2million figure for the dig was from the previous scheme.

The overall question of viability related to the S106 obligations and
the viability assessment came up with a £24-26million deficit.

The viability assessment had been carried out using a standard
viability assessment. The NPPF guidance was outlined and it was
added that the developers were taking a longer term approach to
make the scheme viable. If during the life of the scheme it became
viable, the S106 contribution for affordable housing could be revisited
as part of the overage.

The scheme was being assessed using the standard methodology in
the guidance.

With reference to the Council for British Archaeology (CBA)
methodology for the excavation for the site, it was explained that to
widen the size of the excavation would have a greater impact on the
site. Reference was made to previous reports on the archaeology of
the site and a Member noted the questionability of the location of the
Roman road and it was explained that it was highly likely that the
bridge was located onwards from Tanner Row.

The stepped entrance at one access point was because of different
ground levels. The stepped access was expected to be mainly used
for deliveries but could also be used by the general public.

It was confirmed that the stairs in the middle if the building met
accessibility requirements.

The gates would be closed when the attraction was not in use and
that part of Tanner Street was in the ownership of the building.

Blue badge holders would be dropped off at the three to four parking
spaces on Tanners Moat. An explanation of drop off locations was
given.

Each of the apartments will be accessible, and 20% of the rooms in
the aparthotel will be accessible.

Regarding visitor numbers, the economic impact assessment took
account of visitors being from York and this was factored into that
calculation.



Page 25

Members then asked further clarification questions to officers to which they
responded that:

The viability at the point in time showed that affordable housing could
not be provided. This may be able to be provided at a different point
in time.

The Executive Summary of the FVA remained the same as the full
report.

The location of cycle parking and storage was explained.

The location of the parking bays was yet to be finalised.

Condition 56 referred to the viability of the scheme.

It would not be reasonable to include a funding agreement, and a
condition could not be used to secure funding. The Senior Solicitor
confirmed that conditions could not be used to regulate private
contracts.

It was clarified that the viability assessment was to look at the viability
of S106 contributions.

Paragraph 58 of the NPPF states that the weight to be given to the
viability assessment is to be determined by the decision maker.

The reason for the building material and colour was explained.

All four clauses needed to be met to meet policy D6 of the Local Plan.
Condition 6 covered the archaeological remains management plan.
The process for the evaluation of archaeology was explained.
Regarding the CBA reference to the lack of evaluation of the site,
there was no real knowledge of what laid under the site. The
difference with the site was that other public benefits aside, the
benefits outweighed the substantial harm.

It was difficult to answer whether deposits on the site would dry out
as a result of environmental impacts.

The rationale for the juxtaposition of the design of the building on the
corner and its harm to listed buildings was explained.

It was explained that the details of the overage needed to be
confirmed and would be dealt with when negotiating the s106
Agreement.

The education provision and location of play equipment were based
on officer’s evidence bases. In the absence of evidence to support
alternative allocation, the officer's recommendation regarding the
location of the play equipment would remain unchanged.

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that, depending on the nature of
amendment being sought, it was possible to amend an officer
recommendation. If changes needed to be made to theS106 once
completed, this would need to be agreed and formalised via a Deed
of Variation. It was confirmed that details of the amount and allocation
of S106 contributions could not be changed.

The recommendation was based on officer’s evidence base.



Page 26

[The meeting adjourned at 18:50 and reconvened at 19:00].

The Senior Solicitor advised that in the absence of relevant assessments
having been undertaken to support changes to the S106 obligations, the
Committee needed to make their decision based on the recommendation
and evidence used to make the recommendation. The Head of Planning
and Development Services advised that the Applicant was prepared to
accept a change to Condition 56 regarding providing evidence of funding
for the site. The inclusion of this in the condition was considered
reasonable by officers.

Members then debated the application. Following debate Clir Fenton
proposed the officer recommendation to approve the application with the
additional conditions relating to the inclusion of a biodiversity enhancement
plan/drawing, lighting design plan, submission of a construction
environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity), works to ensure the
stopping up of parts of Tanner Row to facilitate the landscaping

scheme and amended Conditions 2, 31, and 42 and amendment to
Condition 56 regarding providing evidence of funding for the site. This was
seconded by ClIr Doughty. A vote was taken with six voting in favour and
five against.

It was therefore:

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to completion of a
S106 agreement to include the items below and the
recommended conditions:

- Control of Build to Rent tenancy length

- Viability review mechanism

- Education contributions

- Primary £56,928

- Secondary £26,126

- Early years £56,928

- Off-site sports facilities for clubs based in the city centre and
Clifton £38,127

- Off-site amenity space at North Street Gardens and War
Memorial Gardens £27,029

- Children’s play space at Scarcroft Green play area £13,676

- Off-site highways works

- £20,000 to implement changes to loading restrictions on
Wellington Row and Tanner Row, access onto Wellington Row
and parking restrictions if required

- £3,000 towards signalling changes to accommodate cyclists at
the junction of Tanner’'s Moat and Rougier Street



Page 27

- £6,000 for a TRO and signage for a car club car on North
Street or nearby

- Sustainable travel £400 per dwelling toward bus pass or cycle
equipment

- S106 monitoring fee £1000 for travel planning, £1300 each for
open space, education and highways.

Additional conditions

1. A biodiversity enhancement plan/drawing shall be submitted
to, and be approved in writing by, the local planning authority
prior to the commencement of above ground works. The
approved plan shall be implemented prior to first occupation
and retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and
wildlife interest of the area, and to be in accordance with
Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF (2021) to contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by minimising
impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more
resilient to current and future pressures.

2. Prior to the installation of any new external lighting, a ‘lighting
design plan’ shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The plan shall:

e Demonstrate that required external lighting has been
selected in line with current guidance — Bat Conservation
Trust (2018) Bats and atrtificial lighting in the UK.

e Demonstrate how and where external lighting will be
installed (through the provision of appropriate lighting
contour plans and technical specifications), clearly
demonstrated where light spill will occur.

e The approved lighting plan shall be retained and
maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To protect the habitats of European Protected Species
where there might be changes on site in accordance with
Section

15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. No development shall take place until a construction
environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include the following:



Page 28

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction
activities

b) Identification of ‘biodiversity protection zones’

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive
working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during
construction (may be provided as a set of method statements)
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to
biodiversity features

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists
need to be present on site to oversee works

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication

g) The roles and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of
works (ECoW) or similarly competent person

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning
signs

The details of the approved plan shall be fully complied with in
accordance with approved timescales.

Reason: To facilitate the protection of notable/sensitive habitats
within the local area.

4. Prior to commencement of development, works to ensure the
stopping up of parts of Tanner Row to facilitate the landscaping
scheme as shown on the indicative landscape plan 0730-RFM-
XX-

00-DR-L-0001-S2-P03 shall be completed to the satisfaction of
the

Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of good design and highway safety.

Amended Conditions

Condition 2 lllustrative landscape plan 0730-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-
0001-S2-P03

Condition 31 Upon completion of the development, delivery
vehicles and waste removal vehicles to the development shall
be confined to the following hours:

Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours

Saturday 07:00 to 19:00 hours and not at all on Sundays and
Bank

Holidays



Reasons:
I

Page 29

Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of the nearby
properties from noise.

Change proposed to delivery hours to address potential conflict
with pedestrianised hours.

Condition 42 Prior to the commencement of each phase of
development, details of the following shall be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:
e Amount and type of construction traffic
e Construction access and egress
¢ Routes into and out of the city centre for construction
vehicles including arrangements for deliveries and loading
(with holding areas off site if required)
e Dilapidation survey over area to be agreed
e Locations for contractor parking
e Suitable and safe access, parking and drop-off for visitors
and staff during Phase 1 (archaeological dig)
e Hoarding details - please note hoarding licences are likely
to be required
e The approved details shall be implemented prior to
commencement of, and fully adhered to throughout, the
relevant construction period.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Condition 56 — to provide evidence of funding for the site.

The scheme involves the demolition of 3 buildings within the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area. None of the buildings
are of significant architectural value, and one is identified as a
detractor, therefore no objection is raised to their demolition,
providing a sufficiently high-quality replacement is proposed. An
archaeological dig will then take place across 28% of the site
followed by construction of a 12 storey (2 basement storeys
plus 10 above ground) building consisting of a visitor attraction
related to the archaeological dig, 2375sqgm office space,
aparthotel and 153 flats. The site, as well as being in the
conservation area and Area of Archaeological Importance, is
within Flood Zone 3 and adjacent to, or in close proximity to, a
variety of listed buildings. In accordance with paragraph 11 of
the NPPF, the more restrictive heritage assets and flood risk
policies in the NPPF apply.



Vi.

Page 30

The proposal results in the loss of office space within the
existing buildings. An assessment of the existing floorspace has
shown that it is less attractive to the modern business as a
result of its layout and low energy efficiency. Additionally, there
has been a change in character along Rougier Street to a more
leisure-based emphasis. There is some replacement office
space in the new building, and it is acknowledged as a more
energy efficient and practical floorspace than the existing. For
these reasons, the proposal is considered to comply with policy
EC2 of the emerging Local Plan.

The proposal has been revised significantly since the previous
scheme and now represents a more sensitive response to its
context. It is still however a large building within the historic city
and as such will necessarily impact on its surroundings. As a
result, harm has been identified to the conservation area and
the setting of a number of listed buildings, most particularly 15,
16 and 17 Rougier Street. The harm to designated above
ground heritage assets has been assessed at less than
substantial.

The archaeological dig is an intrinsic part of the scheme. It is
anticipated that the archaeological deposits found will be of
national importance and they should therefore be considered
subject to the policies for designated heritage assets. Local
Plan policy D6 identifies that where archaeological deposits of
more than 5% of the site are disturbed then this equates to
substantial harm to the heritage asset.

The Courts have held that when a local planning authority finds
that a proposed development would harm a heritage asset the
authority must give considerable importance and weight to the
desirability of avoiding such harm to give effect to its statutory
duties under sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The harm
resulting from the scheme is considered to substantial however
substantial economic, social and environmental benefits have
been identified. These benefits relate to the significant
economic benefits of the visitor attraction, public engagement
and educational benefits of the archaeological dig, provision of
housing, modern energy efficient building and public realm
enhancements.

The substantial harm to the designated heritage assets has
been afforded great weight in the planning balance however



Page 31

there are also significant public benefits. While it is clearly a
finely balanced decision, these public benefits are considered
sufficient to outweigh the harm identified to those heritage
assets even when such harm has been afforded considerable
importance and weight in the overall planning balance.

vii.  As set out in section 5 of the committee report, other identified
potential harms to flood risk, highway safety, visual and
residential amenity and other environmental matters could be
adequately mitigated by conditions.

CllIr Cullwick, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 7.44 pm].



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 5 October 2022

Present Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair),

Ayre, D'Agorne, Doughty, Kilbane, Fisher, Looker,
Melly, Waudby and Fenton (Substitute for Clir
Barker)

In Attendance Becky Eades (Head of Planning and Development
Services)
Ruhina Choudhury (Senior Solicitor)
Jonathan Kenyon (Development Management
Officer)

Apologies Councillor Barker

25. Declarations of Interest [19:46]

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting, any personal
interests, not included on the Register of Interests, or any prejudicial or
disclosable pecuniary interests they may have in respect of business on the
agenda. In respect of agenda items 4b [Oak Haven, 144 Acomb Road,
York, YO24 4HA [22/00304/FULM] and 4c [York Wheelchair Centre,
Bluebeck House, Bluebeck Drive, York YO30 5RA [22/00707/FULM], ClIr
Rowley noted his profession as a Funeral Director. There were no further
declarations of interest.

26. Public Participation [19:46]

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A. Johnny Hayes explained that when
CYC developed its own projects there had been serious public concern
about how these were handled in the planning process. He added that the
ombudsman had expressed concern regarding planning. He noted his
concerns regarding a number of aspects in the determination of planning
applications. In respect of the National Railway Museum central hall
application on bring considered at the meeting, he noted that flaws in the
planning system that were behind the public outrage to the application.



Page 34

27. Plans List [19:46]

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development Services, relating to the following planning applications,
outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out
the views of consultees and officers.

28. Vacant Site, Eboracum Way, York [19/01467/FULM] [19:46]

Members considered a report on viability issues in delivering the scheme
for the erection of 5 storey apartment building with basement comprising 62
residential units (Use Class C3), associated car parking and landscaping
works at Vacant Site, Eboracum Way, York. The scheme, for residential
development of the site was considered at planning committee 11 February
2020 and approved in May 2020. The S106 Agreement dated 20 May
2020 (as varied by the Deed of Variation dated 1 December 2020)
contained a policy compliant affordable housing obligation of 20% (in
accordance with policy H100 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018). The
Development Management Officer explained that there were now viability
iIssues in delivering the scheme and the construction and abnormal costs
had been independently reviewed by Quantity Surveyors and a fresh
viability appraisal undertaken by the District Valuer. The viability appraisal,
by the District Valuer, concluded that the scheme was not viable and
recommended to the Council that the £1m contribution offered was
reasonable. As such, Members were asked to consider delegating authority
to Officers to vary the S106 agreement accordingly. This would secure £1m
in planning obligations. The recommendation was for the affordable
housing obligation to be reduced accordingly to £881,471.

The Chair invited the Applicant to the table. The Applicant explained the
viability issues to Members. In response to Member questions, he
explained that:
e He was not the original applicant and had not been made aware of
the £600k costs for access to the site via the delivery track
¢ Risks were considered, however, there were unforeseen
circumstances with the site due to Coronavirus
e Should the affordable housing contribution not be reduced, the
development would become unviable
e The Applicant was to get their equity out of the development.
e |t was a residential development with dwellings available to buy
e There have been various difficulties in securing funding

In response to questions from Members, Officers clarified that



Page 35

e The legal agreement as signed currently, including the affordable
contribution would stand if the affordable housing contribution was
not agreed by Members.

¢ |t was not usual to have a sequence of events leading to a request for
a reduction in the affordable housing contribution.

e Under the current s106 there is no opportunity for the council to claw
any money back should the price of the units increase.

e The reduction in S106 contributions came from the affordable
housing contribution because of obligations within the legal
agreement.

e How the viability appraisal was approached.

e The dialogue regarding the scenario of the bank taking the site back.
The information given from the bank as part of the preapplication
process was that it would be developed into an aparthotel or student
accommodation.

¢ All affordable housing could potentially be lost if an application for an
aparthotel was brought back to the Committee for determination.

e The original permission stood and the Committee was considering a
deed of variation.

e The extra costs for the boundary wall were included in the
development costs. This was not a significant cost.

e The developer was not in full agreement of the valuers costs,
including the land value. The 8% profit was based on a land value of
£250k.

e Why it was not possible to have parking on the site.

e There could be an overage clause added into the S106 agreement to
look at the profit made and a subsequent contribution to affordable
housing.

Following debate, Clir Ayre proposed the Officer recommendation to vary
the S106 with the addition of an overage clause into the S106 agreement to
look at the profit made and contribution to affordable housing. This was
seconded by ClIr Fisher. Nine Members voted for the motion and two voted
against. It was therefore,

Resolved: That delegated authority be granted to Officers for the S106
agreement to be varied accordingly to secure £1m in planning
obligations including the affordable housing obligation be
reduced accordingly; to £881,471 and for the addition of an
overage clause into the S106 agreement to look at the profit
made and contribution to affordable housing.

Reason:



Page 36

I.  The developer can afford to provide £1m in planning
obligations, although, based on the viability, developer profit is
below the normal threshold. In reality the profit is lower,
because of the price paid for the site. This compromise would
allow for retention of the current contractor and finance to
complete the scheme. Officer recommendation is to vary the
s106 agreement to secure a £1m planning obligation, rather
than the original £2,058,921. This is broken down as follows:
a) Education - £54,711 to be used at Tang Hall Primary
(reconfiguration to increase capacity) & £24,987 to be used
at Archbishop Holgate (extension to increase capacity)

b) Open space - £7,138 to be used at Monk Bridge Gardens to
improve accessibility

c) Off-site sports provision - £19,383 to be used at Glen
Gardens to improve tennis, basketball and bowling green
facilities.

d) Car club - First occupants to be offered £200 towards
membership/use (£12,400)

e) Affordable housing - £881,381

f) The total loss off affordable housing contribution would be
£1,058,921

ii.  This follows the recommendation from the district valuer who
has carried out an independent viability review on the scheme
based on verified incurred construction costs.

lii. The risk associated with not proceeding with the s106 variation
Is that the residential development scheme stalls for an
unknown period of time. The banks would likely repossess the
site and pursue a more profitable scheme i.e. student
accommodation or an apartment type hotel (which would fit
within the approved building envelope). This scenario has been
confirmed by the applicant. These alternatives would not make
the same contribution to local housing need and would
incorporate zero affordable housing contribution.

CllIr Cullwick, Chair
[The meeting started at 7.44 pm and finished at 8.54 pm].



Page 37 Agenda Iltem 4a

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 39 November 2022 Ward:  Rural West York
Team: West Area Parish: Upper Poppleton Parish
Councill

Reference: 21/02804/FULM

Application at: Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster Business Park
Harwood Road Upper Poppleton

For: Extension to warehouse (B8 Use with ancillary office/welfare
space) with service yard, vehicular and cycle parking, and
landscaping

By: Pavers Holdings

Application Type: Major Full Application

Target Date: 28 November 2022

Recommendation: Refuse

1.0 PROPOSAL

Application site

1.1 The application site is agricultural land, used for grazing, located beyond the west
extent of the existing Pavers warehouse and the Northminster Business Park.

1.2 The business park access is from Northfield Lane. The lane also provides access
to Poppleton Park and Ride, some 300m to the north. To the south-east of the site
there is a pedestrian and cycle route (which passes under the outer ring road)
connecting into Knapton Village and the west side of the city. On the east side of
Northfield Lane are a terrace of houses, located just past the main entrance to the
business park. Further south is Oakwood Business Park, which also contains
industrial and warehouse units, associated car parking and vehicle storage, the latter
extends to the south end of Northfield Lane.

1.3 Northminster Business Park has been in operation since 1997. It has since
extended west (to accommodate Pavers) and to the south. The business park now
accommodates over 45 businesses involved in commercial and industrial activities.

Draft Local Plan context

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 38

1.4 In the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 Northminster Business Park is identified
for expansion. The allocation ST19 - designated for employment land uses —is to the
south of the existing business park only, expanding to Moor Lane. The application
site is not within land allocated for development; it is land proposed to remain in the
Green Belt.

1.5 Both the 2005 and 2018 draft Local Plans are not adopted (at this time). The
application site is within identified Green Belt in both plans. The application site is
regarded as being within the general extent of the Green Belt. The approach is
consistent with how other applications to extend the business park have been
determined.

Proposals

1.6 The proposals are to extend the Pavers shoe warehouse. Pavers have been
based at the business park since 2001. The existing Pavers building was first granted
permission in 2004 (reserved matters approval granted in 2005) and subsequently
extended further west following planning permission 18/00565/FULM. The initial
development provided some 3,980m2 floor space; the extension a further 4,370m2.

1.7 The proposals are for a warehouse extension to the west of the existing building
providing a further 11,275m2 floorspace. The scheme would include associated
works including an extended servicing area (8 loading bays and turning space for
HGV’s), vehicle and cycle parking, and landscaping, including native tree and shrub
planting at the site boundary.

1.8 Recent growth has seen expansion of Pavers’ retail portfolio to over 180 stores
and increases in online sales by over 700% in the last 3 years. Storage requirements
are expected to double over the next 5 years. The company has already reached
capacity at its Northminster Business Park base; current operations rely on off-site
storage facilities. The applicant’s position is that additional warehouse facilities are
essential on-site; a single warehouse facility is necessary for efficient business
operations.

1.9 A new distribution facility for DPD is under construction on the land to the south
of the Pavers site. The facility provides 5,570m2 and will be some 11m high
(approved under 21/00796/FULM). This means the Pavers site is unable to expand
(and remain on a single site) within the existing Northminster employment land
allocation (site ST19). The economic benefits of allowing Pavers to grow are put
forward by the applicants as benefits to justify development within the Green Belt.

Relevant Planning History

1.10 Northminster Business Park has been extended into the Green Belt on multiple
occasions, although in each case the application site was (in the relevant draft local

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 39

plan) either reserved/safeguarded land or within the ST19 allocation. Pavers has
previously been extended as follows -

- Business Park extended to accommodate Pavers shoes in 2005 (04/03805/0OUT).

- Further extension for a warehouse extension to Pavers, granted on multiple
occasions (07/02963/0OUTM, 15/02721/FULM and 18/00565/FULM) (only the latter
implemented).

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

2.2 The development plan for York relevant to this application comprises the Upper
and Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan (2017) and the saved policies of the
Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) relating to the general extent
of the York Green Belt.

Saved Yorkshire and Humber Reqgional Spatial Strateqy (RSS) policies

2.3 The Regional Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and the Humber (May 2008) policies
which relate to the York Green Belt have been saved together with the Key Diagram
insofar as it illustrates the general extent of the Green Belt around York.

2.4 The environmental assessment process for the RSS abolition highlighted that
revocation of the York Green Belt policies before an adopted local plan was in place
could lead to a significant negative effect upon the special character and setting of
York. As such, the Government concluded that the York Green Belt policies that are
part of the regional strategy be retained.

2.5 The saved RSS policies are YH9(C) and Y1 (C1 and C2) which relate to York's
Green Belt and the key diagram insofar as it illustrates general extent of the Green
Belt.

POLICY YHOC: Green Belts

The detailed inner boundaries of the Green Belt around York should be defined in
order to establish long-term development limits that safeguard the special character
and setting of the historic city.

POLICY Y1C: York sub area policy
Plans, strategies, investment decisions and programmes for the York sub area
should:

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 40

- Define the detailed boundaries of the outstanding sections of the outer boundary
of the York Green Belt about 6 miles from York city centre and the inner boundary
in line with policy YHOC.

- Protect and enhance the nationally significant historical and environmental
character of York, including its historic setting, views of the Minster and important
open areas.

Upper and Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan (2017)

2.6 In respect of the Green Belt the plan (in 4.1.10) states the “plan continues to apply
the approach to the identification of the Green Belt as set out currently in the RSS and
the Fourth Set of Changes Development Control Local Plan (2005) on an interim basis
until such times as the emerging Local Plan is adopted. This will ensure that the
preparation of the emerging Local Plan is used as the mechanism for the detailed
identification of the York Green Belt boundaries in accordance with national planning
policy”. The application site is within ‘Reserved Land’ in the 2005 plan. Reserved
Land is not allocated for development i.e. it is regarded as general extent of the Green
Belt. The policy for considering proposals within the Green Belt, in the neighbourhood
plan, is consistent with the NPPF.

2.7 Policy PNP 7 - Business and Employment states new business development on
established business parks will be supported where car parking is provided to City of
York Council standards. In respect of Northminster Business Park Section 8 —
Employment developments states expansion within the curtilage of this site would be
acceptable. Further expansion would compromise the green belt.

NPPFE

2.8 Key sections of the NPPF are as follows —
4. Decision-making

6. Building a strong competitive economy

13. Protecting Green Belt land

The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 (2018 eLP)

2.9 Key relevant Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 Policies (in respect of the principle
of development) are as follows -

SS1 Delivering Sustainable Growth for York
SS2 The Role of York’s Green Belt

SS23 Land at Northminster Business Park
EC1 Provision of Employment Land

GB1 Development in the Green Belt

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 41

2.10 The Green Belt Topic Paper 1 Approach to defining York’s Green Belt addendum
2021 is the evidence base that underpins the proposed Green Belt boundaries in the
2018 eLP and is relevant to consideration of the proposals and the impacts on the
Green Belt.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Carbon Reduction Team

3.1 In this instance consider a BREEAM Score of ‘Very Good’ acceptable given the
justification provided within the BREEAM Pre-assessment and given the nature of a
development of this type.

3.2 No comments or anticipations have been provided surrounding Policy CC1
relating to the achievement of a 28% reduction in carbon emissions.
Energy/sustainability statements have not been provided at this stage. If

Economic Growth Team

3.3 Support the application. Comments are based around economic growth only, as
the team are aware that this application is to develop on agricultural land in the Green
Belt, and not on designated employment land as per the draft Local Plan.

3.4 Pavers Shoes is a home-grown business, established in York by the family 50
years ago. The company has gone from strength to strength and now trades on a
global scale, whilst retaining roots firmly in the City.

3.5 The application proposes a large extension to the existing infrastructure, totalling
120,000ft2 and creation of 100 new jobs. The site is well situated, near to the major
road network, Poppleton Bar Park and Ride and York’s cycle network, allowing ease
of access for goods and labour.

3.6 The availability of suitable employment space is vital to ensuring that York remains
a great place to do business. Both anecdotal evidence through business engagement
and recent office/industrial availability data provided by Co-Star demonstrates a
strong demand for business accommodation across York, especially industrial units
as they infrequently come onto the market for either rent or purchase.

Flood Risk Management Team

3.7 Officers agree with the Ainsty drainage board comments; that surface water
discharge from the site should be 3 I/sec as agreed previously for the site (reference
application 18/00565/FULM). The foul pumping station requires a maximum

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 42

discharge rate of 2l/sec. Swales are proposed as part of the surface water drainage
strategy. There are no details of the swale’s capacity. To enable maintenance of the
swales, tree planting (contrary to as shown on the plans) would not be permitted within
such areas. The drawings show the swales in the same location of the planting
proposed to screen the site.

Highway Network Management

3.8 Officers raised the following issues — the bin store and collection point should be
within the site / cycle parking needs to be covered / the main entrance to the business
park should be wide enough to allow HGV’s to pass.

Local Plans Team

3.9 The site falls within the general extent of the Green Belt as defined by RSS. On
the basis of analysis of the very special circumstances put forward by the applicant
officers raise a policy objection to the principle of development in this green belt
location. Development in this location would be detrimental to the openness of the
green belt and its purposes.

3.10 The application site has been considered through the Local Plan development
plan process, as part of a larger site, as follows: Site 689, Site 764, Site 793 with the
latter two submitted at preferred options stage 2013. Site 793 was proposed as
safeguarded land in the Further Sites Consultation (2014). However, the preferred
sites consultation 2016 removed all safeguarded land from the plan, instead the plan
identifies sufficient land, including land for flexibility, to accommodate York’s
development needs across the plan period, 2012-2032 and beyond to 2037 to provide
green belt permanence. Allocations are justified in meeting development needs over
the plan period, with additional provision; to allow for flexibility in choice of premises,
the loss of existing outdated buildings as well as a 5% vacancy factor and additional
2-year land supply to allow time for developments to complete.

3.11 This approach was joined up with further technical officer consideration of the
adjoining land at ST19 which analysed employment demand through the Employment
Land Review and proposed that a 15ha site for up to 60,000sgm of B1C/B2/B8
floorspace be allocated to the south of the existing Northminster Business Park.

3.12 A full assessment of the Green Belt boundary in relation to the application site is
presented in Annex 4 to the Green Belt Topic Paper Addendum [local plan
examination document EX/CYC/59f].

3.13 Northminster Business Park is allocated in the emerging Local Plan as a strategic
employment site (ST19). Annex 4 of the Green Belt Topic Paper Addendum proposes
Northminster Business Park be inset from the Green Belt Boundary. This annex
details that the (existing) densely developed area of Northminster Business Park does

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 43

not contribute to the openness of the Green Belt and is therefore inset within the
Green Belt. It also states that to deliver “long term permanence for the York Green
Belt it has been determined that there is potential for an expansion of the business
park to the south” in-line with the settlement pattern.

3.14 In allocating the land to the south as part of site ST29 the Green Belt appraisal
identifies an increased importance to keep the land to the west (i.e. the application
site) permanently open.

Features of the western boundary are described as:

- follows the extent of the 20th century development before following historic field
boundaries to Moor Lane;

- is recognisable and is easily determined on OS maps and on the

- ground;

- offers permanence.

3.15 In defining the boundary of the expanded Northminster Business Park (ST19),
the assessment of Green Belt has been prepared in order to mitigate the potential
harm of the Green Belt and as such it is said of the western boundary, where the
application site lies, that it will have an increased importance to remain permanently
open.

Public Protection

3.16 Land contamination — a desk-based assessment recommending site
investigation has been issued. Investigation and a remediation strategy should be
secured through condition.

3.17 Construction management — measures to minimise noise, dust and vibration
during construction requested.

3.18 Noise — the assessment is unclear as to possible effects of vehicle movements
at night-time (23.00 to 07.00). Clarification is requested.

3.19 Electric Vehicle facilities — recommend provision of six EV charging points.
Charging points should be located in a prominent position on the site and should be
for the exclusive use of zero emission vehicles.

Design, Conservation, and Sustainable Development - Archaeology

3.20 Based on-site investigation (at this site and the site to the south) a limited
programme of trial trenching is requested to complete site evaluation. This could be
secured through planning condition.

Design, Conservation, and Sustainable Development - Ecology
Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a




Page 44

3.21 Great Crested Newts - There are multiple ponds and ditches within 500m of the
application site. These areas have now been subject to survey work (by the applicant
under application 22/01555/FULM) which concluded a negative

3.22 Nesting Birds - the application site offers suitable habitat for nesting birds.
Precautionary methods to ensure active nests are not destroyed during any
vegetation clearance or tree works are required. This can be dealt with through
condition.

3.23 Bats - The existing boundary vegetation has the potential to be used by light
sensitive species, such as bats. Although a lighting plan has been provided, the plan
indicates that the light levels on and through the new linear planting will be high
enough to act as a deterrent to such species. Recommendations on suitable lighting
have been made in the applicant’s ecological impact assessment. It is recommended
that the applicant continues to work with a consultant ecologist to ensure an
appropriate lighting scheme can be provided.

3.24 Biodiversity Net Gain - Through the provision of native planting, as shown with
detailed planting plan 21102-TLP-400, it is considered that the proposed development
can achieve a Biodiversity Net Gain in-line with the National Planning Policy
Framework. A condition to secure such is recommended.

Design, Conservation, and Sustainable Development - Landscape

3.25 Officers advise that the proposed development would have a significant effect
on landscape character, from a component of an open agricultural landscape, to a
built industrial landscape. The development would have a negative influence on the
adjacent landscape character since it would interrupt the line of open fields to the east
of Burlands Lane which are directly linked with the wider arable landscape to the west
of the city.

3.26 To the west of the existing business park is an expansive network of fields that
form part of the rural context of the city, especially as seen on the A59 approach — a
major arterial route into the city; and also experienced from Moor Lane, a recreational
route connecting Knapton with Harewood Whin and Rufforth.

3.27 Due to the scale and direction (expanding west) of the proposed development, it
would reduce the compactness of the existing business park and increase the extent
of peripheral development around the edge of the city outside of the ring road.
Development would impact on the compactness of the city (compactness being a key
component of the historic character and setting of the city as identified in the Heritage
Topic Paper and the Green Belt Topic Paper 2021).

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 45

3.28 In respect of the landscape and visual impacts officers also refer to the notably
long straight lines of vegetation (which are existing / proposed to screen the business
park); that the proposed extension does not adhere to existing field boundaries; that
proposed boundary treatment would take some 15 years to fully establish, although
in the winter months the business park would be visible from surrounding roads and
footpaths; and the landscape impacts of the external lighting.

EXTERNAL

Ainsty Internal Drainage Board

3.29 Advice on standard drainage requirements provided.

3.30 Surface water drainage - The previous application for the Pavers site proposed
that the existing pumping capacity of 5 litres per second was sustained. As 5 litres per
second appears to be the existing maximum flow constraint of the existing system,
the 12.9 litres per second proposed in this application would not be supported by the
Board.

3.31 Foul drainage - The Board notes that the applicant is proposing to use an existing
foul water pump manhole for the disposal of foul sewage. If Yorkshire Water is content
with the proposed arrangement and is satisfied that the asset has the capacity to
accommodate the flow, then the Board would have no objection to the new proposed
arrangement.

Yorkshire Water

3.32 Surface water run-off from hardstanding (equal to or greater than 800 square
metres) and/or communal car parking area(s) of more than 50 spaces must pass
through an oil, petrol and grit interceptor/separator of adequate design.

3.33 Surface water discharge — if discharge to the public sewer is proposed it must
be evidenced that infiltration or via a watercourse are not practical. There is a
watercourse remote from the site. Connection into such has been discounted due to
3" party land ownership — Yorkshire Water consider permission must be sought.
Yorkshire Water do not agree to the proposed discharge rate of 12.9 I/sec. There are
inadequate details on surface water management.

Rufforth with Knapton Parish Council

3.34 Object and make the following comments -

- The site is not in the parish

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 46

- The site is Green Belt and the proposed development is significant in size. The
Parish Council objected to the extent of extension to the business park proposed
in the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 (2018 eLP).

- The objective of the Local Plan is to plan development in a managed and balanced
way and to protect the Green Belt around the historic City of York. Approval of this
proposal would create a precedent for an unmanaged sprawl of the business park
(as the land is not proposed for development in the 2018 eLP).

- Development on the proposed site would have a significant adverse effect on the
openness of the Green belt and specifically on views from the Rufforth to Knapton
cycle path, a facility much used and enjoyed by residents of our Parish and the
wider York area.

Upper Poppleton Parish Council

3.35 Object as the development is contrary to the Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan.
Support the representations from local residents especially regarding highways safety
issues.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Make It York

4.1 Support the application

- The applicant is a major local employer

- Expansion will be good for the local economy

- Welcome the applicant’'s ambitious growth targets, committing to both online and
physical retailing

Cllr Hook

4.2 The expansion is into good agricultural land and will create an odd shape, which,
should a precedent be set by approving this proposal, will soon attract further
applications from elsewhere to “square it off” resulting in continuing expansion of the
business park and erosion of the Green Belt, contrary to the Local Plan when it comes
into force.

4.3 Northfield Lane is a cul-de-sac with 9 residential properties and a great deal of
pedestrian and cycle traffic, making use of the cycle/footpath from Knapton to
Rufforth. This pedestrian and cycle traffic will grow when the new Community
Woodland is established, because visitors will be encouraged to use sustainable
transport options to reach the area. Such vulnerable traffic does not mix well with
large heavy goods vehicles (or any form of motorised transport) able to move at 60
mph. This poses a real danger, which should not be allowed to get worse.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 47

Further representations

4.4 Two objections from residents in Northfield Lane and one general comment advise
as follows -

Light pollution

Concerns of impacts. Noted that there is a high level of light pollution from the existing
Pavers Unit. The Park & Ride site has a controlled effect from its lighting — the
applicant should also be able to cause similar effect.

Scale of development

Excessive growth of the business park and adverse effect on the Green Belt.

The 2016-2036 Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan does not support any development
outside the current curtilage of the business park. 91% of the village neighbours who
voted supported the details and constraints in this plan. If the boundaries are
extended here, then effectively there will no longer be boundaries.

Traffic generation
Northfield Lane is already congested and not designed to accommodate the number
of HGV vehicles associated. Discouraging for pedestrians and cyclists.

Quality of agricultural land
Loss of Grade A land. (DEFRA 2002)

5.0 APPRAISAL

KEY ISSUES
5.1 The key issues regarding this scheme are -

- Application of Green Belt policy

- Economic benefits

- Highway Network Management

- Ecology / biodiversity

- Sustainable design and construction

- Drainage

- Public protection matters

- Consideration of very special circumstances

Application of Green Belt policy

5.2 The Regional Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and the Humber (May 2008) policies
which relate to the York Green Belt have been saved together with the Key Diagram
insofar as it illustrates the general extent of the Green Belt around York.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 48

5.3 The environmental assessment process for the RSS abolition highlighted that
revocation of the York Green Belt policies before an adopted local plan was in place
could lead to a significant negative effect upon the special character and setting of
York. As such, the Government concluded that the York Green Belt policies that are
part of the regional strategy be retained.

5.4 The saved RSS policy Y1C: York sub area policy advises that “plans, strategies,

investment decisions and programmes for the York sub area should:

- Define the detailed boundaries of the outstanding sections of the outer boundary
of the York Green Belt about 6 miles from York city centre and the inner boundary
in line with policy YHOC.

- Protect and enhance the nationally significant historical and environmental
character of York, including its historic setting, views of the Minster and important
open areas”.

5.5 The Wedgewood v City of York Council Judgment, March 2020 is a material
consideration in respect of the approach to decision making in the general extent of
the Green Belt. The case decided that in the absence of a defining Local
Development Plan that specifies what is and is not Green Belt, ... (the Council) must
apply the high-level policy rationally in order to determine what land within the inner
and outer boundaries of the Green Belt) is and is not to be treated as Green Belt land.
In doing so, it may have regard to —

- The 2005 Draft Local Plan incorporating the full set of changes

- The emerging Local Plan, provided it has due regard to the guidance at paragraph
48 of the NPPF.

- Site-specific features that may tend to treating the site as Green Belt or not.

5.6 Applying Wedgewood only strengthens the position the site be regarded as within
the Green Belt.

5.7 The application site lies within the reserved/safeguarded land identified in 2005
Draft Local Plan policy GP24a. The background text to the policy advised ‘it is
important to recognise that Reserved Land is not allocated for development at the
present time but will be brought forward with a review of the plan”.

5.8 In the emerging plan (2018 eLP) the application site is within the Green Belt. In
allocating the land to the south as part of site ST29 the Green Belt appraisal identifies
an increased importance to keep the land to the west (i.e. the application site)
permanently open.

5.9 Features of the proposed western boundary are described as:
- The boundary follows the extent of the 20th century development before following
historic field boundaries to Moor Lane.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 49

- The boundary is recognisable and is easily determined on OS maps and on the
ground.
- The boundary offers permanence.

5.10 The existing business park has a strong sense of enclosure. The application site
IS to the west. It contains agricultural land not previously developed. The site has a
rural character, evidentially beyond the demise of Northminster Business Park. Given
the land use, openness and agricultural character of the surrounding area the
application site is evidentially rural and forms part of the countryside.

5.11 The site is regarded as within the general extent of the Green Belt. NPPF Green
Belt policies therefore apply. The tilted balance in favour of sustainable development
(in NPPF paragraph 11) will not be engaged if the proposal conflicts with the
application of Green Belt policy.

5.12 NPPF paragraphs 149 and 150 identify development which can be appropriate
in the Green Belt. Other development is inappropriate, which is harmful by definition
and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. The proposed
development does not fall into any of the exceptions in paragraphs 149 and 150. Itis
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. NPPF paragraphs 147 and 148
therefore apply —

- That “inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and
should not be approved except in very special circumstances”.

- That “substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special
circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason
of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations”.

5.13 The essential characteristics of the Green Belt are its openness and
permanence. The Green Belt serves 5 purposes:

- to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

- to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

- to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

- to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns;

- and to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and
other urban land.

Openness

5.14 The Urban Design & Conservation Landscape Architect officer comments in
section 3 advise on the landscape and visual effects of the proposed development
and the adverse effect on the openness Green Belt that would result. Key impacts
are as follows —

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 50

- Landscape character change from a component of an open agricultural landscape,
to a built industrial landscape. Change in character is derived from the building
proposed, ancillary servicing and parking areas, site lighting and associated traffic
generation. The light pollution and activity associated with the operation will have
a constant and permanent effect as the use is a 24-hour operation.

- Development would interrupt the expansive network of open fields to the east of
Burlands Lane which are directly linked with the wider arable landscape to the west
of the city.

- The landscape forms part of the rural context of the city, especially as seen on the
A59 approach — a major arterial route into the city; and also experienced from Moor
Lane, a recreational route connecting Knapton with Harewood Whin and Rufforth.
Burlands Lane is less frequented than the other two key viewpoints, but the impact
on views would be more direct due to the closer proximity.

- Proposed boundary screening comprises of long straight lines of trees/vegetation;
this effects openness compared to the prevalent character of agricultural fields
bounded by lower hedgerows with intervening trees.

- Boundary screening would take some 15 years to establish. However even when
fully established there would still be a visual and experiential awareness of the
change in land use and its extension into the open countryside, particularly for the
5 months of the year when leaf cover is reduced.

Five Green Belt purposes

5.15 Policy SS2 of the 2018 eLP states the primary purposes of the Green Belt are to
safeguard the setting and the special character of York and to delivering the Local
Plan Spatial Strategy.

5.16 The Topic Paper 1 Approach to defining York’s Green Belt addendum 2021
provides further clarification of the methodology informing the proposed Green Belt
boundaries for York. It identifies Strategic Principles which informed the detailed
boundary setting and the site assessment and selection processes. Most relevant to
the application site are -

- SP4 - The starting point for scoping the detailed inner boundary should be the edge
of the main contiguous urban area of York where built development meets more
open land.

- SP7 — Relates to compactness and landscape character and setting which are
relevant to the historic character and setting of the city.

- SP9 - Outside the clusters of built development analysis has shown that the whole
of the authority area is of an open agricultural countryside nature with open views
across the flat open landscape and therefore relevant to the consideration of
protecting the countryside form encroachment, subject to the overall consideration
of strategic principles.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 51

- SP11 - Where new sites for development are identified these should be those
which cause the least harm to the primary purpose of the York Green Belt and
have regard to sustainability objectives expressed through the local plan strategy.

- SP13 - Detailed boundaries will be defined clearly, using physical features that are
readily recognisable and likely to be permanent.

5.17 The boundaries for Northminster Business Park are reviewed in Annex 4 of the
Topic Paper. The appraisal determines that an extension on the south side of the
business park can be accommodated. It concluded against an extension to the west,
including the land on which the application site is located, and that this land remain
as Green Belt. The key reasons for this conclusion were as follows —

- Openness to the north and west of the business park is important in respect of
compactness and the rural setting of the city. The Green Belt boundary is drawn
to contain the scale of the existing business park, maintain the rural setting and
open approach into the city along the A59. Also to maintain independence,
separation, and prevent coalescence between the business park, the Park & Ride
and the village of Poppleton.

- The north and west boundaries are important in respect of safeguarding the
countryside from encroachment.

- An extension to the west (and the extension proposed in this application) would fail
to be defined clearly, not using physical features that are readily recognisable and
likely to be permanent.

5.18 The identified expansion of the business park to the south was on the basis that
the resultant boundaries would be considerably more recognisable (both on OS maps
and on the ground) and permanent and would have a lower impact on the
compactness and rural setting of the city. It is of note also that openness of the land
to the south has already been effected by development; the DPD site (where
development has commenced) and three substantial agricultural/industrial buildings.
The visual impact of the latter buildings is illustrated in the LVIA appendix 3 —
visualisations view 3.

5.19 For the reasons above the 2018 eLP evidence base determined that the land the
subject of this application, taking into account the methodology in the topic paper,
continue to be designated as Green Belt. This evidence base is directly relevant to
the application; and allows a conclusion to be drawn that the proposed development
would be in conflict with the following three Green Belt purposes —

- to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas.

- to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment.
- to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 52

5.20 The two purposes not affected are to prevent neighbouring towns merging into
one another; and to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of
derelict and other urban land. In respect of these Green Belt purposes there would
be no threat of separate towns merging (the merging of surrounding villages and the
main urban area is considered under purpose 4) and the 2018 eLP acknowledges
that the development needs of the city will require Green Belt land.

5.21 The identified harm to the Green Belt is therefore as follows —

- Inappropriate development, which is harmful by definition.
- Harm to openness.
- Contrary to three of the five Green Belt purposes.

5.22 In order for the proposals to be NPPF compliant, paragraph 148 advises ‘very
special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.

Economic benefits

5.23 The applicant’s case for the scheme is as follows -

- The Company employs over 1,700 people nationwide, including 270 employees
based at Northminster Business Park and more than 20 staff at Pavers’ two stores
in York. The Company is expected to have an annual turnover of £200m in 2022
and is planning for a turnover of £350m by 2028.

- Recent growth has seen expansion of its retail portfolio to over 180 stores and
increases in online sales by over 700% in the last 3 years. Pavers’ storage
requirements are expected to double over the next 5 years. The Company has
already reached capacity at its Northminster Business Park base, with current
operations having to rely on off-site storage facilities. It has an essential need for
additional accommodation on site.

- Planning permission (21/00796/FULM) has recently been granted for a new
distribution facility for the DPD Group on land to the south of the Pavers premises.
This means the Pavers site is unable to expand (and remain on a single site) within
the existing Northminster employment land allocation (ST19) in the publication
draft Local Plan.

Business and operational needs

- Need for the development arising from the continued growth of a key York
business.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 53

- The need to connect with complex linear automation processes at the existing
warehouse and lack of suitable alternative (single) site that is on land currently
proposed for employment allocation in the emerging Local Plan.

- Landscape and visual effects of the proposed development can be mitigated.

Economic benefits

- Supporting local businesses and growth in the wider York economy.

- Directly creating 100 jobs in the local economy.

- Directly contributing to economic growth during the construction phase.
- Unlocking potential for future expansion of Pavers’ offices within the

- Business Park, leading to further job creation and economic growth.

5.24 The applicant’s storage requirements have increased due to business growth but
also wider economic issues, regarding shipping and growth of internet sales, which
mean that more storage space is required. Providing further storage capacity will
allow the business to be more efficient and would reduce traffic movements,
compared to the current arrangement where goods need to be moved between
satellite warehouses (currently some 250,000 pairs of shoes are stored off-site. This
represents ‘dead stock’ unavailable for sale until it is transported to the headquarters
for picking. This is neither economically or environmentally sustainable in terms of
road transportation and temporary hire of offsite facilities and (the applicants advise)
represents a cost of over £250,000 per year to the business).

5.25 The previous extension cost some £10m and includes bespoke automation
systems. Expanding the existing warehouse is more practical and cost efficient
compared to relocating the entire operation to new premises. If the business were to
relocate, the applicants advise this would likely be in the form of other distribution
centres nationwide, however the preference is for the business to remain in York.

Highway Network Management

5.26 The NPPF states that in assessing applications it should be ensured that:

- Opportunities to promote sustainable transport included where appropriate.

- Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users.

- Any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated
to an acceptable degree.

5.27 The NPPF also states “Development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Impact on the network

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 54

5.28 The proposed development would, according to the applicant’'s documentation,
create an additional 100 staff employees, resulting in a total number of 370 staff. The
increase will equate to an additional 60 office staff and an additional 40 warehouse
staff.

5.29 The applicants advise that many of the warehouse staff will arrive / depart outside
of the established network peak hours.

5.30 The Transport Assessment includes traffic survey data which concludes the
existing development has some 75 vehicles entering the site at the am peak. A further
33 are anticipated as a consequence of the proposed development. The travel survey
(54% staff surveyed in December 2021) found that 78% staff travel by car alone.

5.31 HGV movements are currently 5-6 during the peak hours. It is expected the
increase in HGV movements will be spaced over the day. In relation to HGV
movements the applicants Vision Statement document notes that business growth
has resulted in excess of 1,500 pallets of shoes being stored in off-site storage which
are then transported to / from the site for picking and distribution. Pallet storage off-
site results in additional trips currently travelling to other storage sites and back to the
development site which is an inefficient system both economically and
environmentally.

5.32 The applicant’'s Transport Assessment (TA) reviews impact on A59 junction
(taking into account committed development with a base year of 2026). The outputs
show a degree of saturation at no more than 80%. This illustrates the junction will not
exceed capacity. Highway Network Management have raised no issues in respect of
traffic generation and impact on the network.

Parking facilities

Cycle storage

5.33 The proposals include 50 cycle parking spaces in addition to the existing spaces
on-site (20 quoted in the TA).

5.34 Local parking standards are contained in the 2005 Draft Local Plan.
Cycle parking standards require a minimum of 1:300 for B8 & 1:60 for offices.
Minimums in LTN1/20 differ and are 1:500 & 1:200 respectively.

Comparisons of cycle parking requirements

CYC LTN 1/20
Warehouse 61 36
Office (existing) 18 5
Total 79 41
Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 55

| Proposed 70

Car parking
5.35 The proposed layout shows car parking as follows —

110 spaces opposite the proposed extension
50 spaces opposite the existing warehouse
38 spaces in front of the building

Total 198 spaces

5.36 There is also an overspill car park not shown on the plan. The current application
for the office extension (22/01555/FULM) shows the existing 38 spaces in front of the
building replaced with a scheme providing 30 spaces and a further 52 spaces in the
proposed south car park. Both schemes therefore show 242 spaces in total.

5.37 Local car parking standards are contained in the 2005 Draft Local Plan.

These state parking should be provided at a ratio of 1 space per 300m2 for B8
(storage/distribution) and 1 per 30m2 for the office element (assuming the site is
classed as outside the built-up area, otherwise 1 per 45m2).

5.38 The local standards would equate to the following maximum number of cap
parking spaces —

Site with warehouse extension 85 (98 if 1 space per30m?2)
Site with warehouse and office 132 (167)

extensions

Proposed 198

5.39 The strategic policy in the 2018 eLP for Northminster Business Park expansion
establishes key principles of a sustainable business park, the promotion of
sustainable transport solutions. The Transport Assessment included with this
application advises 78% staff travel to work by car alone. The Travel Plan targets a
reduction to 70%. Highway Network Management advise that 2019 survey data they
hold had 61% staff travelling by car alone. The application advises the extension
would lead to 60 further FTE jobs in the warehouse.

540 The NPPF in paragraph 110 states it should be ensured appropriate
opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be — or have been — taken
up, given the type of development and its location. This does not appear to be the
case in this application given the combination of the excessive amount of car parking
proposed and the lack of aspiration in the Travel Plan for promoting sustainable travel,
in the context of a trend for an increase in staff commuting by car alone.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 56

5.41 The scheme illustrates 6 EV charging points and 6 disabled parking bays.
Proposed are 198 car parking spaces; in excess of 5% car parking would have EV
charging and in excess of 5% parking would be accessible.

Ecoloqgy / biodiversity

5.42 The NPPF states decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by minimising the impacts on, and providing net gains for,
biodiversity and recognising the wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem
services — including the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile
agricultural land, and of trees and woodland.

Biodiversity Net Gain

5.43 The applicants have supplied a detailed planting plan, that the Council’s ecologist
considers would deliver biodiversity net gain. However, this planting is on land
proposed in the drainage strategy for swales; there is a conflict in this respect as the
land cannot accommodate both landscaping and drainage. There is also the issue
(set out in the protected species paragraph below) that light pollution could affect bats.

Loss of agricultural land

5.44 The application site comprises of what may be regarded Best and Most Versatile
Land. The Natural England Maps are general and region wide. The mapping provides
an estimate of land quality and are clear in advising that more detailed surveys are
required for site specific assessments.

5.45 Natural England are a consultee where the loss of 20ha or Best and Most
Versatile Land and where proposals are not in accordance with an approved
development plan. They are not therefore a consultee in this instance.

5.46 Natural England Yorkshire & Humber Agricultural Land Classification Maps
estimate the land as Grade 2 - Very good.

5.47 There is no specific policy in the neighbourhood plan or the 2018 eLP that
prevent the development of land of a specific agricultural quality. It is noted ST19 is
on land of similar agricultural quality and such land is widespread around the city. The
loss of agricultural land is not considered a reason to oppose the scheme.

Protected species
5.48 Great Crested Newts — No adverse effect would occur. There is one pond within

300m of the site, which scored 0.51, classifying it as ‘below average’ quality for GCN
using Habitat Suitability Index (HSI). The pond appears to be managed for wildfowl,

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 57

reducing the value for amphibians. An eDNA test for Great Crested Newts returned a
negative result.

5.49 Bats — Mitigation is considered necessary to avoid loss of potential foraging
habitat for bats. The existing boundary vegetation has the potential to be used by
light sensitive species, such as bats. The lighting plan provided indicates that the light
levels on and through the new linear planting will be high enough to act as a deterrent
to such species. There would be some loss of existing hedge (to accommodate the
extension westward) leading to loss of potential foraging habitats for bats. The
applicants Ecological Impact Assessment recommends mitigation and should
permission be granted, it could be subject to a condition seeking to reasonably
minimise light pollution.

Sustainable design and construction

5.50 Policies CC1 and CC2 of the 2018 eLP establish the following requirements in
respect of sustainable design and construction —

- CC1 - New buildings must achieve a reasonable reduction in carbon emissions of
at least 28% unless it can be demonstrated that this is not viable. This should be
achieved through the provision of renewable and low carbon technologies in the
locality of the development or through energy efficiency measures.

- CC2 - All new non-residential buildings (with a total internal floor area of 100m2 or
greater) should achieve BREEAM ‘Excellent’ (or equivalent).

5.51 A BREEAM pre-assessment report has been undertaken (related to new
construction of commercial / industrial buildings). The assessment concludes that
only a very good rating is practical given the type of warehouse type building
proposed. This position has been verified by the Council’s Carbon Reduction team
as reasonable and it is noted very good was also accepted for the DPD scheme (to
the south of the site) which is for a comparable building typology. BREEAM and the
required reduction in carbon emissions could be secured through planning conditions.

Drainage

5.52 Policy ENV5 of the 2018 eLP sets sustainable drainage requirements. In terms

of surface water run-off, it requires the following, unless it is agreed such rates are not

reasonably practical —

- Previously developed sites — 70% of existing run-off rates.

- New development on greenfield sites — run off rate shall be no higher than the
existing rate prior to development taking place.

5.53 The surface water run-off rate for the site was established as 5 I/sec in previous
application to extend the site (18/00565/FULM). The site drainage would be updated
if the extension were to be implemented. Because part of the site is already

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 58

developed and part Greenfield officers have requested a surface water run-off rate of
3 I/sec, for the entire site. Evidence the pumping station (where surface water is
discharged) can accommodate such is required.

5.54 The drainage scheme for the previous extension included an attenuation tank
which will need to be removed to accommodate the proposed extension. The updated
strategy includes a new attenuation tank and swales to accommodate surface water.
The strategy is not workable presently because the proposed swales are at the site
boundary where landscaping is proposed. The two land uses are not compatible;
swales need to be free from vegetation to continuously provide storage.

Public protection

5.55 Section 15 of the NPPF, regarding the natural environment advises that planning
decisions should contribute to the natural and local environment by preventing new
and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or
being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of sail, air, water or noise pollution.
Paragraph 186 states opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts should
be identified, such as through traffic and travel management, and green infrastructure
provision and enhancement. Paragraph 187 states decisions should ensure that new
development can be integrated effectively with existing businesses and community
facilities.

Land contamination

5.56 A desk-based assessment recommending site investigation has been issued.
Investigation and a remediation strategy should be secured through condition.

Air_quality

5.57 In respect of Electric Charging facilities the local guidance - draft Low Emission
Planning Guidance requires a minimum of 5% of all parking spaces (or 1 space,
whichever is greater) to be provided with EV charge points — this exceeds minimum
requirements for active EV charge point provision as set out in the Building
Regulations Approved Document S (non-residential buildings under the regulations
only need to provide 1 ‘active’ space if over 10 spaces are proposed). Passive
provision is now dealt with under the Building Regulations. A condition is necessary
to secure the active provision; the 6 EV points as shown on the proposed site layout.

5.58 The site is not in an existing area of air quality concern. Taking into account
2018 eLP policy ENV2: Managing Environmental Quality and the proposals for
parking and highways impact, Public Protection Officers have not required a further
air quality assessment.

Noise
Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a




Page 59

5.59 There are houses opposite the main entrance to the business park. Public
Protection officers advise the applicant’s noise assessment was unclear in respect of
noise from HGV vehicles during the night-time period.

5.60 The noise assessment for the storage and distribution site to the south of Pavers
(for DPD under approved application 21/00796/FULM) undertook a specific
assessment of HGV delivery noise. The assessment determined —

- Most significant noise impact will occur from HGVs entering and exiting the wider
Northminster Business Park site and transiting through the business park. This is
in addition to stopping and restarting vehicles at the loading bays, any external
manoeuvring, and the loading and unloading of vehicles.

- HGV noise will be similar in character to the existing road noise which pervades
the site, any reversing alarms could be considered just perceptible at the NSRs in
terms of tonality, so a 2dB penalty from ‘just perceptible tonality’ has also been
included.

- The predicted change in ambient noise, from all sources of vehicle noise assessed
cumulatively during the night-time, is a maximum of 1.7dB. On this basis the
cumulative noise contributions are considered to be below the LOAEL and ‘Not
Significant” with the outcome requiring no further adjustment or additional
mitigation (the impact was lower during the daytime).

5.61 For Pavers, HGV movements would be spaced over the day and consolidating
the operation to a single site would mean deliveries from other storage sites (to this
site) would no longer be required. However there is no cumulative impact assessment
taking into consideration the extra HGV movements associated with the increased
scale of the Pavers site. The stopping and restarting of vehicles may also be affected
due to proposals for extra security at the main entrance to the business park (planning
permission for a security cabin by the entrance gate was considered at Planning
Committee B on 1.9.2022).

Consideration of very special circumstances

5.62 NPPF paragraph 148 states that “when considering any planning application,
local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm
to the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm
to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from
the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations”.

5.63 The identified harm is as follows -

Green Belt
- Inappropriate development which is, by definition, harmful.
- Harm to openness.

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 60

- Harm to 3 of the 5 Green Belt purposes.

Other identified harm

- The drainage design is unresolved in respect of the agreed run-off rates and how
on-site attenuation (in respect of swales) would be accommodated (in addition to
tree cover and biodiversity net gain). That drainage is unresolved is contrary to
NPPF paragraph 169 and eLP policy ENV5: Sustainable Drainage.

- Due to the conflict between drainage and landscape proposals the scheme is not
evidentially in compliance with NPPF paragraph 174d and Publication Draft Local
Plan 2018 policies D2: Landscape and Setting and GI2: Biodiversity and Access
to Nature (in respect of landscape and visual impact and biodiversity net gain).

- Sustainable travel promotion is lacking, in particular due to over provision of car
parking and the lack of aspiration in the travel plan for promoting alternative to
private car travel. To this extent the proposals are contrary to NPPF paragraphs
107-113 and 2018 eLP policies SS1 and T1)

- Proposed lighting strategy would lead to loss of potential foraging habitat for bats
(contrary to NPPF 179).

- The noise assessment is not robust in evidencing noise from HGV movements
would have no undue effect on the dwellings adjacent the business park entrance.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The proposals are for a warehouse extension of significant scale (11,275sgm
floorspace) which is over double the size of the existing premises, along with
associated car parking on what is currently open agricultural land within the general
extent of the Green Belt.

6.2 The land is proposed to remain Green Belt in the emerging local plan which is
currently at examination.

6.3 The applicants have provided a business case demonstrating the benefits of the
existing premises being able to expand, allowing growth and increased efficiency of
the business. The expansion of the existing site can only take place on Green Belt
land.

6.4 Policy requires substantial weight to be given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very
special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations”.

6.5 The identified harm is as follows -

Green Belt
- Inappropriate development which is, by definition, harmful.
- Harm to openness.
Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 61

- Harm to 3 of the 5 Green Belt purposes.

Other identified harm

- The drainage design is unresolved in respect of the agreed run-off rates and how
on-site attenuation (in respect of swales) would be accommodated.

- Due to the conflict between drainage and landscape proposals the scheme does
not evidentially provide space for a drainage solution and the landscaping
proposed. The landscaping is proposed by the applicants to mitigate landscape
and visual impacts and to deliver biodiversity net gain.

- Sustainable travel promotion is lacking in particular due to over provision of car
parking and the lack of aspiration in the travel plan for promoting alternative to
private car travel.

- Proposed lighting strategy would lead to loss of potential foraging habitat for bats.

- The noise assessment is not robust in evidencing noise from HGV movements
would have no undue effect on the dwellings adjacent the business park entrance.

6.6 Officers recommendation is that the reasons for the scheme and the economic
benefits proposed do not amount to Very Special Circumstances that clearly outweigh
the identified harm to the Green Belt along with the other identified harm. To this
effect the scheme is in conflict with policy PNP1 of the Upper and Nether Poppleton
Neighbourhood Plan in addition to NPPF Green Belt policy.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION:

1 The proposal by reason of its location within the Green Belt would constitute
inappropriate development in the Green Belt as set out in Section 13 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). Inappropriate development is by definition
harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal would result in a detrimental impact on
openness of the Green Belt and conflict with three of the Green Belt's purposes, as
identified in NPPF paragraph 134.

Other identified harm has been identified as follows -

- The drainage scheme and how the proposed landscaping can be accommodated
(landscaping is proposed to provide mitigation in respect of landscape and visual
impact and to achieve biodiversity net gain) are unresolved. As such the scheme
is not evidentially in compliance with NPPF paragraphs 169 and 174d and
Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 policies ENV5: Sustainable Drainage, D2:
Landscape and Setting and GI2: Biodiversity and Access to Nature.

- Sustainable travel promotion is lacking, in particular due to over provision of car
parking and the lack of aspiration in the travel plan for promoting alternative to
private car travel. To this extent the proposals are not in compliance with NPPF
paragraphs 107-113 and Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 policies SS1:

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 62

Delivering Sustainable Growth for York and T1: Sustainable Access).

- The proposed lighting strategy would lead to loss of potential foraging habitat for
bats, contrary to NPPF paragraph 179.

- The noise assessment is not robust in evidencing noise from HGV movements
would have no undue effect on the dwellings adjacent the business park entrance,
contrary to NPPF 185a.

The site is not one which has been identified for development in the Publication Draft
Local Plan 2018 (which is at examination stage). The Local Plan process did consider
the site for development and determined it was necessary to remain in the Green Belt,
taking into account the spatial strategy for delivering sustainable growth for York.

The benefits put forward by the applicant do not, either individually or cumulatively,
clearly outweigh the totality of the harms identified above and therefore do not amount
to very special circumstances necessary to justify the proposal for the purposes of the
NPPF. The proposal is, therefore, considered contrary to advice within the NPPF, in
particular section 13 'Protecting Green Belt land', policy PNP1 of the Upper and
Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan and policies SS1, SS2: The Role of York’s
Green Belt and GB1: Development in the Green Belt of the Publication Draft Local
Plan 2018.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
However, the principle of development was not acceptable resulting in planning
permission being refused for the reasons stated.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon
Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 21/02804/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 63

21/02804/FULM - Pavers Ltd, Catherine House,

Northminster Business Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton, YO26 6QU

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

T

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Scale :

1:3427

Organisation

City of York Council

Department Directorate of Place
Comments Site Location Plan
Date 18 October 2022
SLA Number [Not Set




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on Thursday 34 November 2022

G9 abed



V.

21/02804/FULM - Pavers Ltd, Catherine House, Northminster
Business Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton, York.

99 abed

Extension to warehouse (B8 Use with ancillary office/welfare space) with service
yard, vehicular and cycle parking, and landscaping

COUNCIL



Site Location Plan

S

= —

1l

[

Harwood Road

| -. I @\
i i |
@] P
U U000 00D 000 i T

£
= @-‘)
Glaisdale Road
)
= =
i

gricultural
Buildings

\
g CITY OF

YORK

Pavers Shoes

Proposed Extension to Pavers Shoes
Northminster Business Park, York

Revisions:
C. 14/12/21. Hedges added, car parking/sprinklers added ;"r’:)i:c(sed Plans
; H H ; H B. 07/12/21. Red line altered. Site Locatiorry
b' COUNCIL of Y. Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022 3111 Hodom st more content added o ——
1:1000 @ A1 w 15.11.2021

om 25m s0m 75m 100m s 2337-PAD0 . ©



CLOSED OR, / /‘

FOLE
N

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTENIPERMI

THIS DRAWING |5 COPYRIGHT. AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF HTC

ARCHITECTS. IT MUST NOT BE REFRODUCES:
TRANSMITTED TO THIRD PARTIES IN ANY FORM

*

Harwood Road

7.
Lt

+
TTTTITT IHL

L'IHH\HHHHHHH

J

peoy siepsieln -

(/]

Proposed Extension to Pavers Shoes
Northminster Business Park, York.

Pavers Shoes

O¥cYaroxanalory:

lw
CalRL g o | I

o]

-

%
i
i
D
i
4ol
Gal

N

stalalalalsiaialalalalolalaialalalalatalnialalalaty

|

I

|
T

!

-

il
|

———— o __BE

— t A&

=——— [ . )
|
|

L ————
| (CEO =1
8 =

. ‘.,m W];! =

" (@)
e
—_——— l_ _-

==-__=—1a
==——s=——|Ru|
===—"=—"l
===
P ==

| T

=== ¢
| 1 0
==_—_—"I®
===——=—|I
B—Fb——— ¢
——=—————|N
=——"(
i

O

Ghnansin E=——=

[T [

. X
P ooet0 a0 000k

LOOUO0C0 00000 WO

o0

Site Layout Plan

= W w

O ST T

b T ND
LN mi—

Agricultural
Buildings

X
3
>

Proposed P

Context
dge

€. 14112/21. Hedges added, car parking/sprinklers added

B. 07/12/21. Red line altered.

o tfiE
- 15.11.2021

Layout/ Roof Plan

A_30M11/21. Hedge added, more context added

ouncil Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

=
@]

COUNCIL

o 1:1000 @ A1
e 2337-P401

100m

sam

25m

om



Proposed Elevations

B—

EXISTING EXTENSION X ED EXTE
NORTH ELEVATION

e

|
WEST ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION
e 9o [ [ ® &e ®©
e ——
e e
== S e = — T —

COUNCIL OVERALL SOUTH ELEVATION 1:500 =———Cjty of York Council Planmng Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

XTENSION

hicarchitects

-
Pavers Shoes

==
Extansion to Existing

T —
Propased Elevations & Section

e Nov 2021
wsan Planning
e 1200/ 1:500 @ AD

aum DGE e
o 2337 S_M 200 B

69 abed



Paladin Fence 2.4 High

09 07 00:00700.20.0

Q
Q)
o

i \ 80 Car Parking Spaces

= — !
@ : | |
ofiE= - |B
— . B .
: - g
— == : ST AT
— == " /
= N ‘
DO O oo [0 L0 O
O |
@
D
iD
E |

o, VS

' 00 &

Paladin Fenca 24 High

Site and Floor Plan

&

Q" CITY OF ’

City of York Council Planning Comn@g,

COUNCIL

eeting - 3rd November 2022

TO113) 244 3457
Ve wanericamsutects co k-
E-Ifogncarontects co.

Pavers Shoes

project

Extension to Existing

drawing fitle

Proposed Plans
OVERALL SITE LAYOUT

Nov 2021

s PLANNING ISSUE

1500 @ A1 6
DGE chectes TJC
2337 avgra PLAO2 . C

0/ abed



Landscape Plan - Extract

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

U 5 |

Natlve Hedge Mx
to be planted In double
staggered row In a
random arrangement -
for further detalls refer
to planting schedule

. Comus sangulnea 15%

. Corylus avellana 20%

. Cralaegus monogyna 30%

o Mlex agulfollum 10%

. Prunus splnocsa 10%

. Vlburnum opulus 1?%

| i |

7 1
Natlve Woodland Mix
o be planted In a
random arrangement -
for further detalls refer
to planting schedule

75 Mo, Acer campestre 5%
150 No, Acer campestre 10%

_ 75 Mo, Alnus glutlnosa 5%

75 Mo, Betula pendula 5%
75 Mo, Cormnus sangulnea 5%
224 Mo, Corylus avellana 15%
150 No, Crataegus monogyna 10% |
75 Mo, |lex aqulfollum 5%
150 No, Plnus sylvestrs 10%
150 Mo, Populus tremula 10%
75 Mo, Prunus avlum 5%
75 Mo, Prunus avlum 5%
150|Nn. Quercus robur 10%

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

KEY
Propossd planting
- Groundeover Shrub

Proposed planting
Mathie Woadland Mlx

Froposed planilng
MNatlve Hadgarow

== Exlstlng hedge

to be retalned

T/ obed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73 Agenda Iltem 4b

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 3 November 2022 Ward: Rural West York
Team: West Area Parish: Upper Poppleton Parish
Councill

Reference: 22/01555/FULM

Application at: Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster Business Park
Harwood Road Upper Poppleton

For: Extension to Pavers facility to provide office space with associated
car parking and landscaping.

By: Northminster Properties Limited

Application Type: Major Full Application

Target Date: 28 November 2022

Recommendation: Approve after referral to Sec. of State

1.0 PROPOSAL

Application site

1.1 The application relates to the Pavers site and land to the south-east, at
Northminster Business Park. The Pavers site accommodates warehouse (6,967m2),
associated office (approx.1,099m2) and car parking. The land to the south-east is
used for overspill car parking (unauthorised).

1.2 The site is regarded as being within the general extent of the Green Belt.

1.3 The Pavers site and the land to the south-east were allocated as
reserved/safeguarded land; land within the Green Belt not allocated for development,
identified as land which could accommodate development needs beyond the plan
period (if necessary) in the 2005 Draft Local Plan. Inthe Publication Draft Local Plan
2018 the application site is within allocation ST19 — land designated for employment
uses.

1.4 A warehouse - storage and distribution centre for DPD - permitted under
application 21/00796/FULM is under construction on land to the south of the Pavers
site. That facility will provide 5,570 sgm floor-space and be some 11m high.

1.5 The business park access is from Northfield Lane. The lane also provides access
to Poppleton Park and Ride, some 300m to the north. To the south-east of the

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 74

business park there is a pedestrian and cycle route (which passes under the outer
ring road) connecting into Knapton Village and the west side of the city. On the east
side of Northfield Lane are a terrace of houses, located just past the main entrance to
the business park. Further south is Oakwood Business Park, which also contains
industrial and warehouse units, associated car parking and vehicle storage, the latter
extends to the south end of Northfield Lane.

Proposals

1.6 The proposals are for a front extension to the existing building to provide office
accommodation. The facility will provide some 2,069m2 office space and be
comparable in height to the existing building. A (reconfigured) car parking area is
shown to the front of the office (north car park) a further car park (south car park) is
also proposed to the south-east of the existing Pavers site.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

2.2 The development plan for York relevant to this application comprises the saved
policies of the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) relating to the
general extent of the York Green Belt and made neighbourhood plans which the site
is located within.

Saved Yorkshire and Humber Reqgional Spatial Strateqy (RSS) policies

2.3 The Regional Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and the Humber (May 2008) policies
which relate to the York Green Belt have been saved together with the Key Diagram
insofar as it illustrates the general extent of the Green Belt around York.

2.4 The environmental assessment process for the RSS abolition highlighted that
revocation of the York Green Belt policies before an adopted local plan was in place
could lead to a significant negative effect upon the special character and setting of
York. As such, the Government concluded that the York Green Belt policies that are
part of the regional strategy be retained.

2.5 The saved RSS policies are YH9(C) and Y1 (C1 and C2) which relate to York's
Green Belt and the key diagram insofar as it illustrates general extent of the Green
Belt.

POLICY YHOC: Green Belts

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 75

The detailed inner boundaries of the Green Belt around York should be defined in
order to establish long-term development limits that safeguard the special character
and setting of the historic city.

POLICY Y1C: York sub area policy
Plans, strategies, investment decisions and programmes for the York sub area
should:

- Define the detailed boundaries of the outstanding sections of the outer boundary
of the York Green Belt about 6 miles from York city centre and the inner boundary
in line with policy YHOC.

- Protect and enhance the nationally significant historical and environmental
character of York, including its historic setting, views of the Minster and important
open areas.

Neighbourhood plans

2.6 The Pavers site falls within the Upper Poppleton and Nether Poppleton
Neighbourhood Plan boundary. The land to the south-east (where the south car park
is proposed) is within the Rufforth with Knapton Neighbourhood Plan area. The
neighbourhood plans acknowledge the City of York Local Plan is responsible for
setting Green Belt boundaries.

Upper and Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan 2017

2.7 Policy PNP 7 - Business and Employment states new business development on
established business parks will be supported where car parking is provided to City of
York Council standards. In respect of Northminster Business Park Section 8 —
Employment developments states expansion within the curtilage of this site would be
acceptable. Further expansion would compromise the green belt.

Rufforth with Knapton Neighbourhood Plan 2018

2.7 In respect of Northminster Business Park the plan states “it is recognised that an
extension to an already flourishing business park would offer significant employment
opportunities for the wider area. However it is felt that the proposed allocation is too
large and does not meet our definition for small scale commercial enterprises”. Had
the proposed extension been on a significantly smaller scale (as originally presented
in the 2016 consultation), subject to certain specific criteria the plan would not have
objected to proposals (for expansion) providing that the access is from Hackness
Road, a sustainable travel approach is adopted, there is no increased congestion and
subject to appropriate screening.

NPPF

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 76

2.9 Key sections of the NPPF are as follows —
4. Decision-making

6. Building a strong competitive economy

13. Protecting Green Belt land

The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 (2018 el P)

2.10 Key relevant Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 Policies (in respect of the
principle of development) are as follows -

SS1 Delivering Sustainable Growth for York
SS2 The Role of York’s Green Belt

SS23 Land at Northminster Business Park
EC1 Provision of Employment Land

GB1 Development in the Green Belt

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Design, Conservation, and Sustainable Development — Archaeoloqy

3.1 No objection. No conditions recommended.

Design, Conservation, and Sustainable Development — Ecology

3.2 No objection. Recommend conditions in respect of biodiversity enhancement,
nesting birds, and in lighting. In respect of lighting the existing vegetation has the
potential to be used by light sensitive species, such as bats. Recommendations on
suitable lighting have been made in the applicant's Ecology Impact Assessment
(section 7.3.2). Officers recommend the applicant continues to work with a consultant
ecologist to ensure an appropriate lighting scheme can be provided.

Highway Network Management

3.3 Officers raised issue with the amount of car parking spaces. Based on local
standards the maximum provision permitted is set out below.

Proposed office = 46
Existing office = 24
Existing warehouse = 23
Total = 93

The scheme shows 142 proposed spaces (82 + 60)

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 77

3.4 Officer note. Highways comments are on the basis of maximum standards being
1 space per 45m2 office floorspace. The standards state 1 per 30m2 for offices
classed as located outside the built-up area, otherwise 1 per 45m2.

3.5 Travel plan — officers have queried the status of travel planning at the site. The
site has at least one existing travel plan although there has been no data or liaison
with the Council (iTravel) in recent years. This scheme proposes a different travel
plan operator for the site.

3.6 Data has been supplied of staff travel surveys in 2019 and this application includes
targets for modal splits in future. This shows a trend since 2019 of decline in travel
by cycle and bus and an increase in private car travel. The targets proposed would
still lead to a decrease in sustainable modes of travel compared to the 2019 data.

3.7 The Poppleton Park & Ride is currently closed but is likely to re-open and targets
for travel by bus lack ambition. The Travel Plan could also include additional
measures to promote walking and cycling and to work with the iTravel to encourage
sustainable travel in general.

Flood Risk Management Team

3.8 The site has been extended previously with the permitted pumped surface water
discharge at the site restricted to 3 litres/second and foul 2 I/sec. These rates may
not be exceeded.

3.9 The strategy varies from that permitted in that it proposes rates of 12.5 I/sec for
the office extension, 0.47 I/sec for the main car park (in-front of the office) and 0.55I/s
for the secondary car park.

3.10 Foul drainage would connect into the existing network.

Public Protection

3.11 Electric Charging facilities - advise that in some circumstances the local guidance
- draft Low Emission Planning Guidance, which requires a minimum of 5% of all
parking spaces (or 1 space, whichever is greater) be provided with EV charge points
— may exceed minimum requirements for active EV charge point provision as set out
in the Building Regulations Approved Document S (note this is the case here where
the Building Regulations would only require 1 EV charging point). As such a condition
is requested to approve a scheme for such facilities. The scheme will be required to
include details of the location of points and confirm a 10 service and maintenance
period.

3.12 Land contamination - conditions are recommended for site investigation and
remediation.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 78

EXTERNAL

Ainsty Drainage Board

3.13 The applicant states surface water disposal via infiltration is not feasible due to
the high water table and clay soils. This requires verification by the Council before
discharge to public sewer is permitted.

3.14 In respect of the proposed strategy for dealing with surface water disposal the
board require evidence the existing building and car park areas drain to the existing
system. The proposed south car park should achieve a greenfield run-off rate the
maximum the board would accept is 0.5 l/sec (0.55 I/sec is proposed).

Rufforth with Knapton Parish Council

3.15 No objection.

Yorkshire Water

3.16 Surface water run-off from hardstanding (equal to or greater than 800 square
metres) and/or communal car parking area(s) of more than 50 spaces must pass
through an oil, petrol and grit interceptor/separator.

3.17 If surface water discharge to public sewer is proposed, evidence is required to
demonstrate that disposal via infiltration or watercourse are not reasonably practical
and of existing positive drainage to public sewer and the current points of connection.
There are land drains located across 3rd party land. 3rd party permission must be
sought and refused before Yorkshire Water would consider this means or surface
water disposal to be conclusively ruled out before discharge to the public sewer could
be permitted.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 No representations have been made.

5.0 APPRAISAL

KEY ISSUES
5.1 The key issues regarding this scheme are -

- Application of Green Belt policy
Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 79

- Highway Network Management

- Ecology / biodiversity

- Amenity

- Sustainable design and construction

- Drainage

- Consideration of very special circumstances

Application of Green Belt policy

Whether the site is within the Green Belt

5.2 The site is regarded as being within the general extent of the Green Belt.

5.3 The RSS states that the detailed inner boundaries of the Green Belt around York
should be defined in order to establish long-term development limits that safeguard
the special character and setting of the historic city. In advance of such defining
(through the local plan examination), in decision-making it has been consistently the
case that the lack of a defined boundary is not sufficient to arbitrarily exclude sites
from the general extent of the Green Belt.

5.4 The Wedgewood v City of York Council Judgment, March 2020 is a material
consideration in the approach to decision making in the general extent of the Green
Belt. The case decided that in the absence of a defining Local Development Plan that
specifies what is and is not Green Belt, ... (the Council) must apply the high-level
policy rationally in order to determine what land within the inner and outer boundaries
of the Green Belt) is and is not to be treated as Green Belt land. In doing so, it may
have regard to —

- The 2005 Draft Local Plan incorporating the full set of changes.

- The emerging Local Plan, provided it has due regard to the guidance at paragraph
48 of the NPPF.

- Site-specific features that may tend to treating the site as Green Belt or not.

5.5 In the 2005 Draft Local Plan the application site is shown as within the Green Belt.
The site is within land identified as reserved/safeguarded land; land within the Green
Belt not allocated for development but identified as land which could accommodate
development needs beyond the plan period (if necessary).

5.6 In the 2018 eLP the site is within employment land allocation ST19 and not in the
proposed Green Belt.

5.7 In respect of site-specific features, the proposed office extension and north car
park is on land currently used as car parking associated with the Pavers site. There
are industrial / warehouse type buildings to the east and west and a tall row of trees
to the north that visually contain the buildings within the business park. To the

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 80

immediate south of the site is the service yard and parking area associated with the
DPD warehouse.

5.8 The south car park has a different context. It lies beyond existing trees that
currently enclose the extent of the business park. This area is therefore more open;
openness is an essential characteristic of Green Belt, as stated in NPPF paragraph
137. However the extent of openness and feeling of countryside is heavily
compromised as the entrance into the DPD site runs around the south of the car park.

Whether inappropriate development

5.9 NPPF paragraph 147 states “inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful
to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances”.

5.10 Paragraph 149 lists the exceptions where new buildings are not inappropriate.
Within criteria g) is limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of
previously developed land, whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding
temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the
Green Belt than the existing development.

5.11 The south car park is on land not previously developed and would be regarded
as inappropriate. The proposals do therefore constitute inappropriate development
which is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt.

5.12 NPPF 148 states “when considering any planning application, local planning
authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green
Belt”.

Impacts on openness and permanence of the Green Belt and the five Green Belt
purposes.

5.13 NPPF paragraph 137 advises the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to
prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics
of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.

5.14 Paragraph 138 states the Green Belt serves five purposes:

a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and

e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other
urban land.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 81

5.15 When looking at the site-specific features of the site, the land where development
Is proposed is contained by the access road to the DPD site, surrounding industrial /
warehouse type buildings and the boundary treatment to the existing business park.
There is existing development to the south (the DPD site and the three substantial
sized industrial / agricultural units further south). In this context, the development
proposed, due to its location, would not be detrimental to the openness of the Green
Belt. It would also not constitute unrestricted sprawl and it would not encroach any
further into the countryside compared to the extent of the existing business park.

5.16 There is no conflict with Green Belt purposes b and d.

5.17 In respect of criteria a and e, the 2018 eLP evidence base document related to
the proposed Green Belt boundaries (Topic Paper 1 Approach to defining York’s
Green Belt addendum 2021) explains development needs over the emerging plan
period cannot be met by using only land in the existing urban area or on previously
developed land.

5.18 The approach to accommodating growth is explained in 2018 eLP policy SS1:
Delivering Sustainable Growth for York (modifications April 2021). The policy states
(allocated) “development is directed to the most sustainable locations, making as
much use as possible of suitable previously developed land (with some release of
green belt land). As is set out in SS1, sustainable growth for York emphasises
conserving and enhancing York’s historic environment. The scale and pattern of
development is guided by the need to safeguard a number of key elements identified
as contributing to the special character and setting of the historic City. These include
the City’s size and compact nature, the perception of York being a free-standing
historic city set within a rural hinterland, key views towards the City from the ring road
and the relationship of the City to its surrounding settlements”.

5.19 In following this spatial approach, the proposed development is on land allocated
for development; site ST19. The proposed boundaries of ST19, extending the
business park to the south only, have been defined taking into account the
aforementioned special character of the city and NPPF paragraph 143f which advises
that when defining Green Belt boundaries plans should “define boundaries clearly,
using physical features that are readily recognisable and likely to be permanent”.

Conclusions

5.20 In applying Green Belt policy the following is applicable —

- The site is within the general extent of the Green Belt.

- The south car park is inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The proposals
do therefore constitute inappropriate development which is, by definition, harmful
to the Green Belt.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 82

- The proposals are considered to not conflict with the Green Belt purposes. There
would be no material adverse effect on openness.

- In applying NPPF Green Belt policy very special circumstances are required. Very
special circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is
clearly outweighed by other considerations.

Highway Network Management

5.21 NPPF 110 states in assessing development proposals it should be ensured that

- appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be — or have
been — taken up, given the type of development and its location;

- safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users;

- any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated
to an acceptable degree.

5.22 Paragraph 108 advises maximum parking standards for residential and non-
residential development should only be set where there is a clear and compelling
justification that they are necessary for managing the local road network, or for
optimising the density of development in city and town centres and other locations
that are well served by public transport.

5.23 Paragraph 111 states “development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe”.

5.24 Paragraph 112 goes on to advise that proposals should “give priority first to
pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and with neighbouring
areas; and second — so far as possible — to facilitating access to high quality public
transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment area for bus or other public
transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage public transport use”.

Parking standards

5.25 Local parking standards are contained in the 2005 Draft Local Plan.

5.26 Cycle parking standards require a minimum of 1:300 for B8 & 1:60 for offices.
Minimums in LTN1/20 differ and are 1:500 & 1:200 respectively.

5.27 Car parking should be provided at a ratio of 1 space per 300m2 for B8

(storage/distribution) and 1 per 30m2 for the office element (assuming the site is
classed as outside the built-up area, otherwise 1 per 45m2).

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 83

5.28 The plans show 1 cycle store. The application form advises 40 spaces are
proposed. There are no details of the existing (warehouse) provision. The plans show
142 car parking spaces.

5.29 The local standards would equate to the following maximum number of spaces.
Car parking spaces vary whether or not the site is considered outside the built-up area
(either 1 per 30m2 or per 45m2). As the site is within the general extent of the Green
Belt to consider it located outside of the built-up area would not be unreasonable.

Warehouse Offices
(existing 6,967sgm) (3,168sgm)
Cycle parking
CYC 23 53
LTN 1/20 14 16
Proposed 40
Car parking
CYC 23 71 (1 per 30sgm) or 106
Proposed 142 (total)

5.30 In respect of cycle parking, a condition could require full details of the facilities.
This would require covered and secure spaces, and 5% oversized/accessible. The
amount proposed for the offices exceeds LTN 1/20 standards. LTN 1/20 is national
guidance and more recent the 2005 Draft Local Plan local standards. The Travel Plan
can also be utilised to secure future provision subject to demand. On this basis the
cycle provision is considered acceptable.

5.31 The amount of car parking, when applying local standards, is an overprovision,
even for a site outside the built-up area. However, taking into account the application
form and planning statement submitted advise the office is expected to employ a
further 130 FTE staff, the 142 spaces proposed overall does not seem unreasonable
for this scheme given the location.

Impact on the network

5.32 The applicants Transport Assessment (TA) reviews impact on A59 junction
(taking into account committed development (including the DPD site to the south) with
a base year of 2026). The outputs show a degree of saturation at no more than 80%.
This illustrates the junction will not exceed capacity. Highway Network Management
have raised no issues in respect of traffic generation and impact on the network.

Promotion of sustainable travel and safe access

5.33 Highway Network Management raised issue with the submitted Travel Plan. It
shows 70% staff travel to the site by car alone, whilst in previous years this figure was
61%.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 84

5.34 National Planning advice advises Travel Plans should identify the specific
required outcomes, targets and measures, and set out clear future monitoring and
management arrangements all of which should be proportionate. They should also
consider what additional measures may be required to offset unacceptable impacts if
the targets should not be met. A planning condition requiring a Travel Plan can be
imposed which specifies specific targets for reducing car usage in accordance with
the guidance.

5.35 The proposed car parking areas annotate 5 accessible car parking spaces and
4 electric vehicle charging points in front of the office building. This provision (for the
proposed spaces) complies with standards in the Council’s Low Emission strategy
guidance and over 5% of the spaces are therefore accessible. This is sufficient and
can be secured through condition. Passive EV provision is dealt with via Building
Regulations.

Ecology / biodiversity

5.36 The NPPF states decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by minimising the impacts on, and providing net gains for
biodiversity and recognising the wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem
services — including the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile
agricultural land, and of trees and woodland.

5.37 An ecological impact assessment has been provided which the Council’s
Ecologist is in agreement with. The report recommends mitigation, in respect of
potential impact on habitats, commuting and foraging bats, and amphibians. It also
recommends “enhanced measures” that would secure biodiversity net gain.
Measures are summarised below and can be secured through planning condition.

- Removal of any vegetation to avoid bird breeding season (tree removal shown to
accommodate bin store, removal of existing landscape to front of site and to
accommodate footpath to south car park)

- To compensate for vegetation loss provide two (preferably) integrated bird boxes
on the proposed building. External boxes could be provided if boxes are not
compatible with the proposed architectural detailing / cladding materials.

- Native species to be within the landscape scheme due to benefits such provide for
birds. This includes the proposed sedum green roof.

- Lighting design to avoid detriment to the ecological value of boundary planting.

Amenity

5.38 The proposed office extension does not raise any amenity issues. The site is
surrounded by commercial uses, or agricultural land and noise from the site itself
would not have a material impact on residential uses outside of the business park.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 85

The expansion would lead to increased levels of traffic. The Transport Assessment
has considered the impact on the main access into the business park and does not
identify any capacity issues, or growth leading to any significant number of vehicles
gueueing to access / leave the business park. The requirement in NPPF policy 185
in respect of the natural environment advises decisions should “avoid noise giving rise
to significant adverse impacts on health and the quality of life”. Significant effects
would not occur as a consequence of the proposed office scheme.

Sustainable design and construction

5.39 Policies CC1 and CC2 of the 2018 eLP establish the following requirements in

respect of sustainable design and construction —

- CC1 - New buildings must achieve a reasonable reduction in carbon emissions of
at least 28% unless it can be demonstrated that this is not viable. This should be
achieved through the provision of renewable and low carbon technologies in the
locality of the development or through energy efficiency measures.

- CC2 - All new non-residential buildings (with a total internal floor area of 100m2 or
greater) should achieve BREEAM ‘Excellent’ (or equivalent).

5.40 The applicants have issued an Energy and Sustainability Statement that
acknowledges local requirements and confirms these can be achieved. It notes that
the technologies listed below would be suitable for the site -

- Air-sourced heat pumps

- Mechanical ventilation systems shall incorporate heat recovery (MVHR) to
minimise energy wastage by transferring heat from the extract air to temper the
incoming fresh air, thereby saving large amounts of heating energy especially in
the colder climate.

- PV

- Combined heat and power.

Policy requirements would need to be secured through planning conditions.

5.41 NPPF paragraph 130 provides overarching design guidance. It requires
developments function well and add to the overall quality of the area, over the lifetime
of the development.

5.42 The proposed office design is to meet specific operator requirements. In scale
the office is two-storey and would provide a front extension that would be of
compatible height to the existing premises. The new facade would enhance the
setting. The scheme is appropriate on design grounds. Large scale details and
materials specifications have been submitted with the package of drawings.

5.43 The key features of the scheme, which illustrate good design are as follows —

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 86

- Office facilities to meet the applicant’s needs and contribute to the health and well-
being of users of the building, including a variety of workspaces and social space.

- Sustainable design including features such as timber frame, green and brown
roofs, energy efficient building envelope, optimum natural light gain and solar
shading.

- Landscaping design illustrating aspirations for biodiversity net gain.

Drainage

5.44 Policy ENV5 of the 2018 eLP sets sustainable drainage requirements. In terms

of surface water run-off, it requires the following, unless it is agreed such rates are not

reasonably practical —

- Previously developed sites — 70% of existing run-off rates.

- New development on greenfield sites — run off rate shall be no higher than the
existing rate prior to development taking place.

5.45 The site has been extended previously with the permitted pumped surface water
discharge at the site restricted to 3 litres/second and foul 2 I/sec. These rates may
not be exceeded. The scheme issued proposes restricted run-off rates, utilising
oversized pipes and attenuation tanks, the latter beneath car parking areas. The
proposed run-off rates are not agreed to but there is scope to vary the proposed
scheme to address concerns, by providing increased storage capacity on site.
Officers ask that members allow officers delegated authority to agree a scheme prior
to determination of the application.

Consideration of very special circumstances

5.46 NPPF 148 states “very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential
harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting
from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations”.

5.47 The identified harm to the Green Belt is that the south car park is inappropriate
development, which is, by definition harmful. No harm is identified to openness or the
purposes of the Green Belt because of the contained nature of the application site.

5.48 No further harm has been identified that cannot be reasonably mitigated through
the use of planning conditions.

5.49 The applicants have submitted an Economic Benefits Assessment dated July
2022. This sets out the following benefits of the proposed expansions to Pavers.

5.50 The Company has now reached operational capacity at its existing base. Pavers’

storage requirements are expected to double over the next 5 years. A single,
centralised distribution and office facility is critical to the future needs of the business.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 87

5.51 Current operations have to rely on off-site storage facilities. Recent growth has
seen expansion of its retail portfolio to over 175 stores, acquisitions of businesses,
and increases in online sales by over 700% in the last 3 years. With anticipated
continued growth to over 250 stores and a rapidly expanding digital presence, Pavers’
storage requirements are expected to double over the next 5 years.

5.52 The expansion proposals involve -

- £10minvestment to create additional 11,275sgm of warehouse floorspace capacity
adjoining the existing facilities on land to the west of Northminster Business Park.
This scheme forms application 21/02804/FULM.

- £9m investment in new office development including new and refurbishment of
existing floorspace to create a total of 3,110sgm. The subject of (this) application
22/01555/FULM.

- Without the expansion of its facilities, Pavers would need to consider relocation to
an alternative site given the operational efficiencies to be achieved from combining
its long-term warehousing and office administration operations on a single site. The
warehouse and office proposals therefore represent an integrated expansion
proposition as part of the Company’s ongoing growth strategy.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The site is within the general extent of the Green Belt. The identified harm to the
Green Belt is that the proposals are inappropriate development, which is, by definition
harmful. No further harm has been identified, to openness or the purposes of the
Green Belt because of the contained nature of the application site.

6.2 No further harm has been identified that cannot be reasonably mitigated through
the use of planning conditions.

6.3 The three overarching objectives of the NPPF in achieving sustainable
development are economic, social and environmental. The objective being to secure
net gains across each objective.

6.4 The economic objective is to help build a strong, responsive and competitive
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity;
and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure.

6.5 The proposed office development will supplement the existing warehouse use on
site. The site is currently in the general extent of the Green Belt. However, it has
been identified through the emerging local plan process as one suitable to contributing
towards meeting development needs over the emerging plan period and is allocated

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 88

for employment uses. The proposed use is compliant with the mix of uses identified
as suitable for the site in the strategic allocation — site ST19.

6.6 The scheme does not conflict with the social and environmental objectives, noting
that biodiversity net gain can be secured through planning condition.

6.7 Taking into account the objectives in the NPPF, the level of identified Green Belt
harm and the economic benefits of the scheme, very special circumstances exist in
this case that clearly outweigh the harm.

6.8 The officer recommendation is -

That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Development Services to:

- Approve a drainage strategy in principle prior to determination, with permitted
pumped surface water discharge at the site restricted to 3 litres/second and foul 2
l/sec.

- Refer the application to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government under the requirements of Section 77 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Should the application not be called in by the Secretary of State, then APPROVE the
application subject to the conditions set out in this report.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve after agreement of drainage strategy in
principle and referral to Sec. of State

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Site plan
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-0103

Floor plans

PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1010
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1011
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1012

South car park
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1013

Elevations and sections
Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 89

PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1110
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1111
PNO-GGA-OB-Z2Z-DR-A-1210
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1211
PNO-GGA-OB-Z2Z-DR-A-1212

Large scale details
PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-2000

Tree protection plan - BA11536TPP
Planting plan - 471-UW-P-001

The materials to be used shall accord with those specified on the approved plans.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Construction management

Prior to commencement of development a Construction Management Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.

The plan shall include: -

- Details of measures to keep the highway clean - wheel washing facilities for the
cleaning of wheels of vehicles leaving the site, including location and type.

- Dust - A site-specific risk assessment of dust impacts in line with the guidance
provided by IAQM (see http://iagm.co.uk/guidance/) and including a package of
mitigation measures commensurate with the risk identified in the assessment.

- Air Quality - The air quality impacts associated with construction vehicles and
non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) and the proposed mitigation measures,
commensurate with the identified risk.

- Noise - Details on types of machinery to be used, noise mitigation, any
monitoring and compliance with relevant standards. Hours of working.

- Vibration - Details on any activities that may results in excessive vibration, e.g.
piling, and details of monitoring and mitigation to be implemented.

- Complaints procedure - The procedure should detail how a contact number will
be advertised to the public, investigation procedure when a complaint is received, any
monitoring to be carried out, and what will happen in the event that the complaint is
not resolved. Written records of any complaints received and actions taken shall be
kept and details forwarded to the Local Authority every month during construction
works by email to the following addresses public.protection@york.gov.uk and
planning.enforcement@york.gov.uk

- Dilapidation survey - Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 90

highways adjoining the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the results
of which shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Delivery times - During construction, deliveries to and from site shall only take place
within the following hours -

Monday to Friday 09:30 to 15:00
Saturday 09:00 to 13:00 only
Not at all on Sundays and bank holidays

Reason: To ensure before development commences that construction methods will
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy ENV2
of the City of York Publication Draft Local Plan. The specified delivery times are in
the interests of highway safety, in particular with regards to trips associated with local
schools.

4  Drainage

Development shall not begin until details of foul and surface water drainage works
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
carried out in accordance with these approved details.

The details shall evidence that the permitted pumped surface water discharge shall
not exceed 3 litres/second and foul shall not exceed 2 I/sec.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details for
the proper drainage of the site in accordance with ENV5 of the Publication Draft Local
Plan.

5 LC1 Land contamination - site investigation

6 LC2 Land contamination - remediation scheme
7 LC3 Land contamination - remedial works

8 BREEAM

Prior to first use of the development hereby permitted a final Design Stage Pre-
Assessment Report showing that the development will achieve at least a BREEAM
rating of 'Excellent’ shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Within six months of first use of the development hereby permitted a Post
Construction Review Certificate confirming that the development has achieved a
BREEAM rating of at least Excellent shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 91

Reason: In accordance with policy CC2 of the City of York Publication Draft Local
Plan and Section 14 of the NPPF.

9 Energy Efficiency - reduction in carbon emissions

Prior to first use of the development hereby permitted it shall be demonstrated that
the development will achieve a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28%
(compared to the requirements of the Building Regulations 2013). This shall be
achieved through the provision of renewable and low carbon technologies and/or
through energy efficiency measures.

Reason: In accordance with paragraphs 151 and 153 of the NPPF and policy CC1 of
the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

10 Cycle parking facilities

The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until full details of the cycle
parking facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, and the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved
details. The approved facilities shall be retained thereatfter.

The details shall show car parking is covered and secure; at least 5% is non-standard
to accommodate people with mobility impairments (as described in LTN1-20 11.3.2)
and Sheffield stands shall be positioned in accordance with LTN1-20 11.4.

Reason: In accordance with section 9 of the NPPF.
11 Electric Vehicle charging points

The four car parking spaces identified on the approved site plan PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-
DR-A-0103 for electric vehicles (identified as ev) shall be provided with such charging
facilities and be for the exclusive use of electric vehicles for the lifetime of the
development. The electric vehicle charging points shall be maintained in accordance
with manufacturers recommendations at all times.

Reason: In accordance with section 9 of the NPPF and the Council's Low Emission
Strategy.

12  Car parking to be set out in accordance with approved plans

The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved plans for
the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles (and cycles) have been constructed and laid
out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such areas shall be
retained solely for such purposes.

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 92

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
13 Travel Plan

A travel plan, developed and implemented in accordance with National Planning
Policy Guidance, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to first use of the development hereby approved. The plan shall be
updated annually thereafter. The development shall operate in accordance with the
aims, measures and outcomes of said Travel Plan.

The travel plan shall identify specific required outcomes, targets and measures for
promoting sustainable modes of travel, and shall set out clear future monitoring and
proportionate management arrangements. It shall also consider what additional
measures may be required to offset unacceptable impacts if the targets are not met.

Specifically the plan shall include a target that no more than 60% of staff travel to work
by car alone.

Reason: To reduce private car travel and promote sustainable travel in accordance
with section 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework and policies DP3:
Sustainable Communities and T7: Minimising and Accommodating Generated Trips
of the 2018 Publication Draft Local Plan.

14  Ecology & soft landscaping

The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until the landscaping
scheme, as shown on approved drawing 471-UW-P-001 and the green and brown
roofs as shown on drawing PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1012 has been fully
implemented.

At least two integrated bird boxes on the proposed building (external boxes may be
provided if boxes are not compatible with the proposed architectural detailing /
cladding materials) shall also be provided prior to first use of the development hereby
permitted.

Any trees or hedgerows which, during the lifetime of development die, are removed
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of a similar size and species, unless alternatives are agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To secure biodiversity net gain and in the interests of the character and
appearance of the area, in accordance with NPPF paragraphs 130 and 174d.

15 Vegetation removal
Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 93

No tree works, or vegetation clearance shall take place between 1st March and 31st
August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed
check of suitable habitat for active birds' nests immediately before the works and
provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that

there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any
such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that nesting birds are protected from harm during construction. All
British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by
Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

16 Light pollution (ecology)

Prior to the installation of any new external lighting, a lighting design scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.

The scheme shall include the following details -

- Evidence lighting, where required, accords with current guidance - Bat Conservation
Trust (2018) Bats and atrtificial lighting in the UK.

- Show external lighting locations and specifications and lightspill contours, to clearly
demonstrate illumination will not disturb light-sensitive wildlife, such as bats.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF.

17  Car parking - oil interceptor

Surface water run-off from communal parking (greater than 800 sq metres or more
than 50 car parking spaces) and hardstanding must pass through an oil, petrol and
grit interceptor/separator of adequate design before any discharge to the public sewer
network. Roof water shall not pass through the traditional 'stage’ or full retention type
of interceptor/separator (it is good drainage practice for any interceptor/separator to
be located upstream of any on-site balancing, storage or other means of flow
attenuation that may be required).

Reason: To avoid pollution of the water network in accordance with NPPF sections
14 and 15.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH
Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 94

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: the use of planning conditions.

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon
Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 22/01555/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 95

22/01555/FULM - Pavers Ltd, Catherine House,

Northminster Business Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton, YO26 6QU

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

.‘?
ﬂ @—
| -
k0 eat Lands
b - = SOTR
L= ﬂiﬂﬂ
-: L T
RS _#‘
e S

\

- THSYaY¥p 5
= 1\ ‘.-".“:'-‘--'33:"1'7 \_
T T o
IHO :; IS
g
A3 A
‘[ o ‘lﬁgﬂ
A
0.7 .' ond
orth Field
Scale : 1:2856
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments

Date 18 October 2022

Site Location Plan

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on Thursday 34 November 2022

/6 abed



22/01555/FULM - Pavers Ltd, Catherine House, Northminster
Business Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton, York.

Extension to Pavers facility to provide office space with associated car parking
and landscaping.

COUNCIL

86 9bed



Fropased Pavers Extonsian

Site Location Plan R i PR i
i

Pavars mmmrnmep ) .
CITY OF e Planiniing appiication boundary fred) : rewisions

66 abed

Proposed Location Plan
' o R K group ginger R PH-08A.00-22-00 20062

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee MeBg™ "3t Rovember 2022




Proposed Site Plan

I.
\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

T - EXiSTING TREES. © |

P e oy

Pavers ownership boundary (blue)

Planning application boundary (red)

PROPOSED Soumy cam
T (2 Sacksy

o N |
[, o
] - T “ _ _ o
DPD ] L
WAREHOUSE ! ;

group ginger

Proposed Site Plan

City of York Council Planning Committee Meefing--a¢# November 2022 4




N L ; Fi g - < ! -
| . —_
Proposed South Car | | o -
] A1 ] .
Park | rs .- . - , )
|
‘ .
_ i
: © l -
2 | 3 .
] o g | :
= i I
<@ == | ! 4 g
: ) i iy
7 3 mg — 1 I )
I EV. 58 : /" N
| a< [ — ‘ \
EV. gm |
EV. oO% " !
55 | - . - -
- EY | 3 5
w ; o
5} ! ‘ o =}
< = | o <
= 0| | | - N |
8 | L 3
- | I || o ‘
1 |
, ! )
L. | - : -
B | -
!
1
i A
‘.

4

S  CITY OF - NEW CARRIAGEWy

TOT obed

I : R K group ginger o o
COUNCIL o]




Proposed Elevations ] ]

Key Plan
122000

ll= i E" _|—._— —
|
|
|
|
|
|

) - j__l'__e

e

L

@ Proposed GA Elevation_North
1:200

@ Proposed GA Elevation_East
1:200

4—-"“""*‘ CITY OF

20T abed

Proposed GA Elevation_North & East
group ginger Asingicated A2 PNO-GGA-OB-ZZ-DR-A-1110

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022 6




Proposed

Ground Floor
EXISTING TREES : )

Plan | | | J |

—————————

HARWOOD RD
|
BT TETIIE Y SN AT e TRl
i Lo

PN
:
Ol .
WAREHOUSE Ly @ .

EXISTING WAREHOUSE

i}

EXTENSION

==

\
N CITY OF

%

====1
1
s i I N B
FJA
ir
H
I g I
|
| F
I
AL_ PROPOSED CAR PARK
(21 SPACES + 4 EV & 5 ACCESSIBLE PARKING)
|
|

€0T obed

YORK ...

COUNCIL o ptwelds
|




Proposed First
Floor Plan

FNM%— : I
EXISTING 1
WAREHOUSE l i
. i
l i
O S ]
WAREHOUSE ]
EXTENSION R gy S
]
p— i s A
P EXISTING TREES Los o afeomm e R T
D CITY OF

0T abed

YORK S — -

T group ginger City of York Council Planning Committee Meetiiftf:=.3utXGv&mber 2022 8

Va,




Page 105

e ——— =7

)
;
E__.

(s30vds 0€)
HHvd ¥VD 03S0d0Oud

L. T
. » &
£ : SO o

POSERLANDSCAPE
~ ==

ol I (N A A O S R RS (S
ﬁ”, b i ! ' S i 0 el | o
(] 1A e ke N
e e e S Hh At i | R el p | Q
| INERE =R R
I N
. s s e IOY
m [ ., | ! .,. ., ._ | ! m N M,m
: e T N TR
m L I T : 7 I _7 . , m f w@
5 L gy e
& . . EM _ o N | j ; 3
=0 : 5 1
A S SES i I
| ] _ | ! Q
R et J 1| | et |8
| b m m | £
" B e e e e e { m | Q
2 It | =
2 c
©
,, o
m
[
3
(@)
X~
S
VI
©
2>
5

group ginger

3
i
9

Proposed Roof Plan




RO AL T )
ma |

f ik m‘ ar

—— e .

SOOEE e T

i) _L?I

h':I

@ Propasad GA Sfie Elevation_East
1:500

a

|Lu|||}_||'|:|‘|i_

90T abed

A Iy T
N mon A =Y e f] E} I —
Proposed GA Site Bevation_Morh
1:500
T T |
U i 2
@ Tﬁd@i&ﬂeﬁaﬂm Soumn
ZX®  ciTY OF Proposed Sections
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022




Large Scale Details

@ Proposad Section Detall_East
1:50

\ s
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Va,

1:2000
Key Plan

VERTICAL FINS

ALLIMINILIM
CURTAIN WALL

/0T abed

VERTICAL PROFILED
METAL CLADDING,
COLOUR MILL
FINEZH ALUMINIUM

@ Froposed Elevation Fart Bay_East @ Froposed Elavation Fart Bay_Worth
1:51 1:8
POWDER COATED MVHR LOUVRED L —— POWDER COATED
METAL CLADDING GRILL, METAL METAL CLADDING
PANEL TO MATCH POWDER COATED PANEL TO MATCH
METAL MVHR GRILL METAL MVHR GRILL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

PROFILED

VERTICAL
METAL CLADDING,

FINISH ALLUMINILM

@mmmm_m
1:5

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109 Agenda Item 4c

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 3 November 2022 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/01281/REMM

Application at: Former Gas Works Heworth Green York

For: Reserved matters application for details of appearance and
landscaping for Zone B

By: Heworth Green Property Company Ltd And Moda Living

Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application

Target Date: 10 November 2022

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The application relates to the former gasworks site. The site is on the Brownfield
Land Register and is allocated in the 2018 Publication Draft Local Plan for housing;
336 dwellings overall; site reference H1.

1.2 Outline planning permission was approved for residential-lead redevelopment of
the site in July 2020. The application was considered by planning committee 12"
March 2020 (application 19/00979/0UTM). The outline permission included reserved
matters of access, layout and scale. This left reserved matters approval pending for
the appearance and landscaping of the three development zones.

1.3 Reserved matters approval was granted following consideration at Planning
Committee 4" November 2021 for Zones A and C (those on the Heworth Green side
of the site).

1.4 This application is for the outstanding reserved matters for Zone B (appearance
& landscaping). Zone B comprises two blocks of Build to Rent accommodation,
located on the southern side of the site and facing outward towards Eboracum Way
and Layerthorpe.

1.5 The amount and scale of development proposed accords with the outline consent
and are not for consideration in this application. The proposed buildings range in
height from 4-storey to 6-storey and would contain the following accommodation —

392 dwellings ranging from 1 to 3 bed apartments:
Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 110

1 bed (Studio) - 25 apartments (6%)

1 bed, 2 person - 228 apartments (58%)
2 bed - 121 apartments (31%)

3 bed - 18 apartments (5%)

- 1,030sgm internal communal amenity space which provides reception
areal/concierge and post/parcel store, lounge areas, co-working space, cinema
room, gym and studio, games room and library.

- The scheme also provides outside amenity space — communal areas within the
landscaping, communal outside space at roof level and private gardens at ground
level.

- 95 car parking spaces (as required by the outline permission). 5 spaces are
accessible. All spaces are proposed to be provided with EV charging facilities.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Key relevant sections of the NPPF

Section 4 Decision making

Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 11 Making effective use of land

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic Environment

2.2 Key relevant policies of the 2018 Publication Draft Local Plan

SS1 Delivering Sustainable Growth for York
HW?7 Healthy Places

D1 Placemaking

D2 Landscape and Setting

D4 Conservation Areas

D5 Listed Buildings

GI2 Biodiversity and Access to Nature

GI3 Green Infrastructure Network

Gl4 Trees and Hedgerows

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Architect)

3.1 Officers support the principles of the scheme, specifically -
- The external layout and configuration of public and private spaces.

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 111

- Scale and massing of proposed buildings.

- Victorian warehouse aesthetic which relates to the sites former industrial use is an
appropriate response, in context with modern commercial of low architectural
guality and a mix of residential typologies.

3.2 In respect of detailed design, the following information was requested for
clarification. Revised and further plans have been provided in respect of these items

Extent of roof-top plant.

Distribution of brick/mortar types.

Typical details in section to illustrate high quality articulation.
Detailed design of roof terraces.

3.3 Require that full large-scale details and materials be approved through condition.
The materials and build quality can also be approved by way of providing a mock
panel on-site.

3.4 There remain reservations over the long corridors which lack natural light. These
are the applicant’s preference for the build to rent product they offer.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Landscape Architect)

3.5 The landscape detail is appealing and has sought to make the most of the external
spaces relative to the scale of the surrounding proposed buildings. Each space has
its own character and rhythm within a common language. The planting includes a
good palette and distribution of trees, using large stock, which will have a reasonable
immediate impact. Provided watering and maintenance are carried out with great
attention, so that the trees establish and thrive, the spacing of the trees suits their
ultimate mature size and relationship to context. The value of the roof terrace as
amenity space for residents is noted.

3.6 Clarification was sought on the following items. Revised and further plans have

been provided in respect of such -

- Children’s play equipment

- Less formal planting (rather than mown lawn) along Eboracum Way and by car
parking spaces

- Living roof — the applicants were asked to explore the possibility for a brown roof
due the ecological benefits of such. Brown roof areas are now illustrated on the
updated roof plan.

Conditions were requested to deal with the following matters
- Tree protection (from ongoing maintenance)

- Approval of hard landscaping such as boundary treatment
- Full planting plan

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 112

Highway Network Management

3.7 Officers asked whether the cycle stores originally proposed could be reduced in
size on security grounds (without compromising overall numbers). The amended
scheme reduced the area of the largest store in block B1 and added a store in B2.
The storage is now more evenly spaced over the site.

3.8 LTN 1/20 requires that at least 5% of parking be designed for adapted cycles for
disabled people. This level of provision has been secured in the updated scheme.

3.9 In respect of the setting out, officers asked for the scheme to be amended as
follows —

- Aisles between double deck storage - 2m minimum required.

- Sheffield stands must be spaced 1m apart

Police Architecture Liaison Officer

3.9 Note that the principles of Secured by Design have been taken into consideration.
In particular, the boundary treatment for the Linear Park and Courtyard that creates
secure gated access to these areas is commended.

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.10 Feel there is a need for more tree planting on the site, particularly in areas away
from the buildings and on the perimeter of the site.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 No representations have been made.

5.0 APPRAISAL

Key Issues

- Principle of the proposed development
- Appearance

- Heritage Assets

- Landscaping

Principle of the proposed development

5.1 The development has outline permission. The principle of the amount and mix of
residential development proposed is established, as are the layout, scale and height
of the proposed development, and the amount of parking. This application is for

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 113

consideration only of the appearance of the buildings in detail and the hard and soft
landscaping within the phase.

5.2 The outline permission and its associated conditions also deal with technical
issues including drainage / impact on wider highway network / affordable housing /
public protection / sustainability / ecology / planning obligations. It also contains
triggers for the installation of associated landscaping and parking.

Appearance

5.3 In respect of appearance and landscaping, policy within paragraphs 130 and 131

of the NPPF are relevant. These state developments should -

- Be visually attractive, as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping.

- Be sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities).

- Establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit.

- Create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.

- Acknowledge that trees make an important contribution to the character and quality
of urban environments. Trees should be incorporated in developments with
appropriate measures are in place to secure the long-term maintenance of newly-
planted trees, and that existing trees are retained wherever possible.

5.4 The National Design Guide, published in 2021, is a companion to NPPF design
policy.

5.5 Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 policies D1 and D2 on place-making and
landscaping require, in particular relevant to this application that —

- Ensure appropriate building materials are used.

- Meet the highest standards of accessibility and inclusion.

- Integrate car parking and servicing within the design of development so as not to
dominate the street scene.

- Create active frontages to public streets and spaces.

- Include planting proposals that are clearly evidence based and make a positive
contribution to the character of streets, spaces and other landscapes.

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 114

5.6 Officers are satisfied the detailed design of the scheme accords with the
aforementioned policies contained in the NPPF, the National Design Guide and the
Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

Building design

5.7 The outline permission for the scheme controlled maximum building heights and
had rules (within a design code and parameters plans) for the permitted floorspace at
each level which, combined, sought to provide variety in the scale and articulation of
the two approved blocks. Officers are content with the interpretation of the outline
permission by the developer and their architects. The overall scale and proportions
of the buildings, which arise from the massing and variation in building lines, combined
with the articulation of the facades, illustrate a scheme of appropriate quality.

5.8 Detailed section drawings of the facade have been provided, illustrating a
sufficient build quality. The intent has been clarified that both blocks will be of the
same brick, with subtle variety developed through differing mortar mixes. A condition
Is proposed to enable officers to approve a mock sample panel illustrating typical
details. This gives assurances on build quality, and is an approach used on schemes
such as Ryedale House, The Stonebow and Hudson Quarter.

5.9 A brown roof has been incorporated into the scheme which is of biodiversity value.
This is an exceedance of the approved parameters in the outline permission. Roof
terraces, providing amenity, are set out so seating and activity is reasonably away
from the building edge.

5.10 All amenity and residential entrances will conform with relevant accessibility
standards including level threshold and power assisted doors as necessary.

Composition of uses

5.11 The site layout follows the outline proposals. There are subtle amendments;
there is further car parking on south-east side of the site, as this was requested by
Highway Network Management officers at outline stage and is a condition of the
approval (condition 17 which required an extra 10 car parking spaces over the site).
A second variation is a reduction in the floorplate of block B2 which enables a larger
internal courtyard/amenity space.

5.12 The blocks have servicing concentrated on the south-east side, by the access
road. The internal communal space faces onto the neighbourhood green, which will
be public amenity space within the scheme. Wayfinding is assisted by the entrance
feature that leads into the areas containing shared inside and outside amenity space.
Ground floor dwellings have private outside amenity spaces. Public, private and semi-
private (communal) spaces are well-defined, by way of defensible space and gated

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 115

access into resident’s courtyards. These measures accord with Secure by Design
principles and are not detrimental to permeability through the site for non-residents.

5.13 In addition to the internal communal spaces at ground level the top floor of the
larger block (B2) also has communal amenity space. The amount of (internal)
communal amenity space proposed is 1030 sgm, which exceeds the outline
requirement of 230sgm. In addition, both blocks have communal roof terraces.
Residents of block B1 have direct access into the B2 courtyard and the building’s
internal amenity space.

Landscaping

5.14 Officers have been involved in evolution of the landscaping scheme since pre-
application. Each space has its own character and rhythm within a common
language. The planting includes a good palette and distribution of trees, using large
stock, which will have a reasonable immediate impact. The detailed strategy is
specified on sheet 2 of the planting strategy.

5.15 In respect of the comment from Guildhall Planning Panel regarding tree planting
on the south side of the site, officers are content the proposed planting is sufficient.
The planting stock is quite large (up to 5m high) so will make a reasonably good
immediate impression. If more trees were added to this area, and they all succeeded,
they may start to compete with each other; and may end up being too close to living
room windows.

5.16 At the periphery of the site, wildflower planting is proposed alongside Eboracum
Way (as recommended by the Council’s Landscape Architect) and a pedestrian / cycle
route, within landscape is shown running parallel to Heworth Green. Car parking on
the southern, Layerthorpe, side of the site is as required by the outline consent which
fixed the number of spaces that were required in this area.

5.17 The is a reasonable mix in type of landscape amenity space. This includes space
for residents to sit outside and provision for children’s play. At ground floor level the
courtyard to block B2 and the linear landscaped area between buildings B1 and B2
are both private and provide secure amenity space (as advocated through Secure By
Design principles) without compromising permeability through the site for all. There
are roof top amenity spaces on both buildings. The space on block B2 being an
extension of the communal resident’s area at top floor level.

5.18 Natural and informal play items have been added to the main courtyard following
comments from the landscape architect. They tie into the large boulders, which
provide an element of play/exploration. Trim trail equipment is now included to the
area of hardstanding adjacent to the main courtyard.

Heritage Assets
Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c




Page 116

5.19 The site of Zone B is outside of any conservation areas. The outline scheme
established the permitted massing and vernacular of Zone B, taking into account the
relationship with the Heworth Green / East Parade / Huntington Road Conservation
Area and important views of The Minster. The details within this reserved matters
application do not have further effect on Heritage Assets.

Cycle storage

5.20 Condition 30 of the outline permission required cycle provision of at least one
space per dwelling and for basic tools to be provided to allow maintenance and repairs
(to accord with the approved travel plan). The actual detail is included in this
application. The provision is as follows -

- 392 spaces in total.

- 252 spaces are in stores within the main buildings. The scheme has been
amended so Sheffield stand setting out and aisle widths meet LTN 1/20
recommendations.

- Overall 19 over-sized / non-standard spaces area proposed. This provision has
been provided following LTN1/20 which recommends a proportion (typically 5%)
spaces should be non-standard.

- The remaining spaces (apart from those for visitors) are in covered and secure
storage areas spaced around the site.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The scheme accords with the outline permission and is acceptable in all other
respects, taking into account relevant NPPF, national design guide and Publication
Draft Local Plan policy. The scheme is subject to the conditions of the outline
permission (which include triggers for installation of the landscaping and parking) and
those recommended in section 7 below.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Location Plan 0858-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0001, rev. P02
Existing Site Plan 0858-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0002, rev. P02

B1 B2 - Level 00 GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-00-DR-A-2000, rev. P7
B1 B2 - Level 01 GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-01-DR-A-2001, rev. P5

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 117

B1 B2 - Level 02 GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-02-DR-A-2002, rev. P5
B1 B2 - Level 03 GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-03-DR-A-2003, rev. P5
B1 B2 - Level 04 GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-04-DR-A-2004, rev. P7
B1 B2 - Level 05 GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-05-DR-A-2005, rev. P5
B1 B2 - Roof GA Plan 21040-FSL-ZZ-RF-DR-A-2006, rev. P4

B1 B2 - GA Sections 1 of 2 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DR-A-2040, rev. P4

B1 B2 - GA Sections 2 of 2 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DR-A-2041, rev. P4

B1 GA Elevations 21040-FSL-B1-XX-DR-A-2020, rev. P4

B2 GA Elevations - Sheet 1 of 3 21040-FSL-B2-XX-DR-A-2020, rev. P4
B2 GA Elevations - Sheet 2 of 3 21040-FSL-B2-XX-DR-A-2021, rev. P4
B2 GA Elevations - Sheet 3 of 3 21040-FSL-B2-XX-DR-A-2022, rev. P4

Vent Detail - 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DAR-2184

Large scale details (note that recessed brickwork to be as brick slip recess detail on
2185) —

Typical detail window bay - 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DR-A-2180

Typical detail projecting aluminium - 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DR-A-2181

Typical Details - Brick Overpanel - 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DR-A-2182

Typical strip window - 21040-FSL-ZZ-XX-DR-A-2183

Typical Cill & Head - 21040 FSL ZZ XX DAR 2184

Reveals showing brick slip recess detail - Brick Slip Recessed Brick Jamb - 21040
FSL XX XX DAR 2185

General Arrangement Plan - 0858-RFM-ZB-00-DR-L-0001, rev. P06
Planting Strategy Sheet 1 - 0858-RFM-ZB-00-DR-L-0004, rev. P04
Planting Strategy Sheet 2 - 0858-RFM-ZB-00-DR-L-0005, rev. P03
Landscaping to rooftop areas - 0858-RFM-ZB-ZZ-DR-L-0002 rev. P04

Cycle storage provision document dated August 2022
Details of secure external stores - RF20-858-ZB-WP07-P06

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

2  Landscaping

Prior to their installation the following landscaping details shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details (note the trigger for installation is dealt
with by the outline permission).

a) Trees - means of support and protection.
b)  Locations of underground utilities.
C) Boundary treatment and means of enclosure.

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 118

d)  Specification of children's play equipment.
e) External lighting (details to include manufacturer's details, location and
lightspill).

Reason: In the interests of good design; in accordance with NPPF paragraph 130.
3 Large scale details

Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of construction of
the relevant buildings (above ground floor slab).

- Reveals and surrounds, including canopies, decorative panels and service doors
at ground floor level

- Block B1 window details and surrounds for north and south elevations

- Balustrading — large scale details of balustrades, including in section and
confirmation of means of fixing

- Block B2 elevation C typical details for ground floor communal / staff areas

Prior to construction of relevant parts of the building, a mock panel showing typical
reveals and their surrounds shall be provided on site. The panel shall be approved
by the Local Planning Authority.

The scheme shall be constructed in adherence with the principals and workmanship
as illustrated on all approved large scale / typical large scale details and the approved
panel.

Reason: In the interests of good design, in accordance with NPPF paragraph 130.
4  Materials

Manufacturer's details of the external materials to be used, including details of the
external finishes to the cycle shelters, shall be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to their installation. The development shall be carried out
using the approved materials. For the avoidance of doubt, and unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, such materials shall include external
walls, windows, doors, fences/screens, landscape paving/decking and roofing
materials but excluding all ground works and the material of the main structure.
Samples shall be provided on site for approval as required by the local planning
authority.

Reason: In the interests of good design and visual amenity, in accordance with the
NPPF, paragraph 130.

5 Cycle storage

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 119

The internal cycle stores shall be set out with 1 metre between Sheffield type stands
and at least 2 metre aisle widths, as shown in the cycle store provision document
dated August 2022. The storage adjacent block B1 (16 Sheffield type stands) shall
be covered.

Cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with the approved Travel Plan issue
1.1 and shall be retained thereatfter.

Reason: In accordance with the travel and transport policy contained in paragraphs
110 and 112 of the NPPF.

6  Visitor (car) parking

At least 5 of the car parking spaces that serve zone B shall be for the use of visitor
parking. At least 5% of car parking spaces shall be accessible, as annotated on the
approved plans.

Reason: In accordance with the travel and transport policy contained in paragraphs
110 and 112 of the NPPF.

7 Roof terraces

The roof terraces shall be set out in accordance with the re-form roof terraces general
arrangement drawing 0858-RFM-ZB-ZZ-DR-L-0002 P0OA4.

There shall be no canopies, shelters, umbrellas or similar structures added to the roof
terraces at any time.

Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity, in accordance with NPPF
paragraph 130.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: sought revised plans to address issues regarding landscaping and cycle
storage and through the use of planning conditions.

Contact details:
Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 120

Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon
Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 22/01281/REMM Item No: 4c



Page 121

Former Gas Works, Heworth Green, Zone B

22/01281/REMM ,
(Gis by £5m ) §
Mo,
u
1\ ~
$‘§
Do o
Z
>
>
.7m
{ %
a u %
1o %
1 Gas 2
Fi 6"ous to %s Distribution o
\ § P Station
% “5 o
o
) 8us S
ipe L
Gas Holder Q o\
rage
ollo g
9 \ ter
emis HolHe 3m
. 0N
llar /)
L)
\ %m
N 0 Ggfa
3
&)
ot
% o
(3 =)
)
(7]
b
) < B .3m l
% N V
o
O
> 4
Wo ]
‘ ‘ =
)
w . E
Scale : 1:2284
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Department Directorate of Place
Comments Site Location Plan
Date 18 October 2022
SLA Number [Not Set




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on Thursday 34 November 2022

c¢T obed



22/01281/REMM - Former Gas Works, Heworth Green, York

Reserved matters application for details of appearance and landscaping for Zone B

COUNCIL

V.



LEGEND

— Flanning Application Boundary

= = Development Zone Boundary

lllustrative Layout
from Outline
permission

ZONE A

— v 7,638 sam

EBORACUM WAY
I
o
[
5

Iy |" e

g [

ARRIVAL STREET

11,074sam

Ll =

i

|-

r'[ - I L ZoNE B
= | i e

‘NEIGHBOURHQOD
GREEN'

de-architecture
‘Sicto 4, Macs=thorpe Business Par

‘S B Lane. Bnopthorpe, Yom. Y023 260
£01304 700541 & stelogyde-archiechrs com

e
Heworth Green Residential Development
York

)
lllustrative Layout - Development Zones

\
N CITY OF

i ! ILLUSTRATIVE LAYOUT

i i k ==

B i SERVICE 1:500 @ A1

: K ACCESS 10 20 30 40 50
' - Joumuoer  ame s armwng number  reveion.

ILLUSTRATIVE LAYOUT - DEVELOPMENT ZONES

18065 0111119 PLANNING  IS-106 P04
=4

COUNCIL

GeT obed




Site Location Plan

EEE [ ] [ ]
um 10 20 a0m aum

Bsalpton o

re-form

landscape architecture

CITY OF K oh

YORK: = & < s
e T LW L]
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting -




Key Surfaces: GR-1a Clay block paving DEEN  Furniture: GR-2a Seats
| Dutch styl, grey/brown with textured finish Hardwood timber slats with steel legs
5 Backrests in some locations
] o . o " " N T Outline planning application boundar
N o) @ L3 R o (s o B ° [ ] plenning 6o r' paving = i seats
% Grey silver colour with textured finish Hardwood timber slats with steel legs.
- e Zone B reserved matters application boundary
4 i . .
I I PI I l | AT o Dutch style, buff colour with textured finish Hardwood timber seating with steel seat base and
TSSO planters
(SN Proposed building.
= v i Surfaces: GR-1c Resin bound gravel Furniture: GR-2d Cycle stands
M 7 Pale buff natursl Steel cycle stands
O ot
"
i 3 (’.‘ B4 = o o o
°, TR b Surfaces: GR-1d Caloured SMA Furniture: GR-2e Cycie stores
(1545452534 aS am Buff colour ‘Secure timber and steel compound
= LeLbErErey CCS » ingle tier parking GCD.» Double ter parking
o eletelones Y e -
= ARG P F 1127 Surfaces: GR-1e Reinforced gravel paving | Fumniture: GR-21Bins.
) PR 4 Wt Plastic porous paving system with buff gravel infill [ Steel frame, wooden slat doors
=1E3 e S .
= DO 1S E
RSP oo Tz ; a
O = 1l F e 7 Surfaces: GA-1f Timber decking Edgings: GR-3a Matal edging
SO0G = ot o =] . Inchudes antisip inserts Aluminium angle fxed into sub-base, laid flush
LT 8 e = =1 vy ol -
fmmm ot L Ol o
N 1 I o8, 5} Surfaces: GR-1g Self binding gravel Edgings: GR-3 Metal edging to soft landscape
= Ch) N ° Buff colour Aluminium fixed into soil using earth spikes
! L b C T-:
3 h Surfaces: GR-1i Loose sggregate maintensnce Edgings: GR-3b Concrete kerbs
margin i ilver grey
L )= 1 20mm slate chippings finish, 50-100mm upstand
It —
R N 7777  Surfaces: GRI] Grass mats
BE (77| mmcetiorsst i R —
e = - 7 British standard grey square channel kerb, lsid flush
FIIELe [+] - o ) -
S . . .
- - o : () S——
= n - Do . e N British standard HB kerb, 125mm upstand
oS < (11545 =
sreellless 2
@ o o0 W A Edgings: GR-3f Concrete pin kerbs
= o, 7 = b v e servation kerb, siiver grey colour with
Y 3 ® x aus textured finish, aid flush
+ T =] +
+ [ — b [~
OOD hos 118 S &@ A" 5 o Edgings: Retaining wall
|+ & - Clad in brick: ch buildis
fe 0 e o o - in brick to match building
Foo o A RS f
g DE boiht S o B ) ” Festures: GR-4a Large Bouiders
= — = = v 43 ag oCoag i ; &? ‘Sawn tops to provide seating and stepping.
(=[] BSOS S, T4 @ e B T 5 Logally sourced
PR e 7o B 7 ’ N
DO = o 2
LT, o0 oo o A T /,f///f > " & Various types of wooden play squipm
S : NG et )
- oo syTseeTen . o002 AL ATl ) ,,// a 3
. " e, - 43 " 00 '[’j' Wy i = 7 Features: GR-4c Trim trail equipment
5 CRTh L AR O oA ,/'/f/, 2P, o 4 /// Various types of wooden trim trail eqe
o [=) S 4243 G - AL Wiy | ] | (D
= o S = _ SR s At = ;
T Pl B o af C, //{ f '/’/ //. ofor " i Boundaries: GR-5a Feature fences
;. “ Te EISEE) A g 3| Powder coated steel fence and gate w .
N Y o 203067, T perforation design
. o0 ) 4 T o0 7 / ///jf'//f 7 ¥ N
o= E RGeS b /f/// [ Automatic risng arm barier
N 5 GG = I ~
diee e e = /////// /[// =
- ] = - e i :// l‘, i .
N Do |he e T e Drainage channe! (Indicative subject to detail
e o - o /// ,//’ f'/'///’ oeg 2 - design]
= i, i ] 7
o0 I wil o §
o n i i &k e e e
// b /] 0 G refer to drawing 0858-RFM-ZB-00-DR-L-0004-Zone:
: i Fool ot z 8 Plantng Srsteey
: i S
B } uiti-stem tree in soft lan
(Bl e ) odg v g [, Amenitylawn @ refer to drawing D858-RFM.Z5-00-DR-.-0004 Zone
+ i 7 + +|  referto drawing 0853-RFM-ZB-00-DR-1-0004-Zone B Planting Strategy.
e ’ o [ i ’ LT B Plantin,
H 7 / g Strategy
I H R
i W ,{/ Wildflower planting.
H i eferto drawing OSSERFMZ0-00.DR0008T000 it i e
B3 ::: /,’//'/'/ ’ fanting Strategy Date  Deasiption o eviion Drown Checkad Approved beviion
o4 i o T Ormamentai laning X
ey e gL P refer to drawing 0858-RFM-Z8-00-DR-1-0004 Zone
44 e N o B Plating Strategy - r
343 v o i)
43 ' //, ‘General Notes. orm; | planting for rai N
g i) . Tt draming 035 AP 25 00 oR Lovos e I0INCISCOPE aChteCHUTe
17 ez e 3 Al dimensonsn mm, unesscervisesaed. B lanting Swategy. Ran gardens subject 1o
o g //'//f 3 Allinformati e Bechive Mil, Jersey Stree,
"‘// (3 b purpase only. ) Manchester M4 61G
- S 4 Al hatch pane cative oniy u T +44(0)161 397 4953
/ //'/ i //’///f,/f/' s Do ot e o fofe o o DISEAPM Z3-00 DRL-000H008. .o oemtanscape.com
3 e " i gl W: re-formlandscape.com
s i - 0SSBAMAZE00DRLO00E Formal hedge planting Project
7 i T i //// o g . refer to drawing 0853 RFM 2B-00-DRA.0004Zone  HEWORTH GREEN
b e ! - : v sl
o A [ - inst site survey information.
% i LAY 00 g 7. A manhols covers ih paving o be recessed. sm Proposed levels Client
PN CITY OF Frokey :
o o the sttention of re-form landscape archRecture, in writn, i
<, prior to commencement of construction works.
P v ;

ot sgn .
oo gooouo s ) 9. Relerto cther con ; ions for the ﬁ"‘ may be unusual or difficul to manage ZONE B GENERAL ARRANGMENT
=) 0005000 - ) following design information: ~ o
- oooqfoc -ﬂm.:mmﬁmmmnmum
\ . + Exsting & pro ies: 201 § . Paper size Scale
o = e consl . Note to contractor to take particular action or carm, per
\ , g o : 5. i G ot o g comnian tgedesgn ote o contractor o take particir I st
\ S o 185 ‘3PPl of ighting design. Status
E 13

COUNCIL - City of York Council, Planiing, C ittee Meeting - 3rd Novegmber 202 [ n m— ) RTINS ek revn

LIR——



Ground Floor Plan

[

g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

.F

=

J |
LTI

Building B1 Level 00

Sosle 1:200@A1

el

=

1 e e e
=] a D@

i
[
O

I
i
il

L[]
O

=NV RIS v
Coo|l
7 <

Building B2 Level 00

Soale: 1200881

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

-
s “’% =
LLIIJLLII%‘ = i g%
o0 & N ;g—‘ I:E 3 E
= : =] o g o Sustio
Erranoe it lobby ‘QHHQ'EEEHHQl [
Entrance/ Emrir-:‘l E‘“""’”\
L |ESS e — =]
e v Gy %y e
----- Commina
)
=) . ENY
@‘5& e St
& @& @, Bice
K, C5 f
LY@ .
72 LS
e N ¢ %>CQ§%%
o
¢ PN
> <
%
.
£n
&
@@ S
::] Entrance / @]

Slevey, Stm s, Parring 2ns Stadory Racuimens: 06 Aporor.
Ao repeod. e m D Sarvay o wih pormision o i Conicler o
b ey oterey Oicn.

‘Crown Copyightrezerves. Fuze Swiios Limied Copyright

wores:

nformtion provided by the Design Team.

Key: Apartment Types

1Bed 1 Person

1 Bed 2 Person

2 Bed 4 Person

3 Bed 6 Person

OoO@Enan

Amentty

Desarption lsumd by D

ZT obed

e
Pl Geners Upden ]
F2 Cliere Review ™ o=z
3 Chere eview o oz
P4 Planning bizue. e ooz
F3 Pianning ez o 2ox
S bszusd or infermasion o zoez:
7 Planning bz o zmose
[l am [ ) %0 2
r T L T 1
i 120

Project Neme:

Heworth Green, York

Drawing T

B1 B2 - Level 00 GA Plan

Drawing Number-

21040—-FSL—ZZ—-00—-DR~-A—2000

Tel+44 (0) 113 880 0770
ww com

Planning




First Floor Plan

8

CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

”“ullllfl

Building B1 Level 01
Eowier 1200

o0

oM

o 0

|

vo 3

(=]

Building B2 Level (1
Scula: 1200w 1

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

mE

(=]
|_|

8
D“a[; a o
o . o o
of
H
"‘EE B %A o .
OQEE & =
L #1437 |
#
L=
o
e
Q
[
=]
E'}
Q
| A |
GCI

S ot e, o Wi it S|

e
e T
T r——
e

et i D T

Faey: Apartment Types

1Bad 1 Farzan
1 Bad 2 Farzon
2 Bad 4 Murzon

3 Had & Paron

ooOooo

|
H

1132 I:
oo
6¢T abed

Hi

[ . - = am =af
T 1

T
o -

st .

Heworth Gresn, York

[
B1 B2 - Lewel 01 GA Flan

[—p——

21040 - FEL—ZZ—-01 — DR — A— 2001




Fourth Floor Plan

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[u]

dleCh il

fedpel

]

Gl IIIIIIIII
memesy (I

e[ ]

I

Building B1 Level 04

‘Scale: 1:200@A1

LI
(I

5

S
1] % il

Building B2 Level 04

Scale: 1:200@A1

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

noTe:

Survey, Stn estgatons, Planning2nc Stautony Racuirmints 1 ApOrovlz.
Ao oo o Crgance Sy Map Wi parTision o e Creroter o
Hor Moty Ssbonary OFfcn.

Crown Copyight ressrved. Fuze S Liviaed Copyright.

noTe

irformason provided by he Design Team.

Key: Apariment Types

1 Bed 1 Person
1 Bed 2 Person
2 Bed 4 Person

3 Bed 6 Person

Ooooogd

Amenity

i
i
[

2
{
99998982
8
§

0 w w o %0 2|
r I I 1
Gepiciese- 120

Project Neme:

Heworth Green, York

[——
B1 B2 - Level 04 GA Plan

Drewing Nurmber:
21040-FSL-ZZ-04-DR- A-2004
Fevidor:  F7  Sosleerommmsgny

DmmBy M Dme 150422
Checked by: DEH

West One

114 Wellington Street

Leeds LS11BA

Tel+44 (0) 113 880 0770

www_fuge-studios.com
oo For o
Planning




Fifth Floor Plan

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

it
i

i'l'
@
£

Building B1 Level 05
Eoais 120081

Building B2 Level 05
Scula: 1-20060AT

>dn o= Y
1%
N ¥ :
_ AVE I~ |
caiig
Tarmw oo = Laniscaps:
- r——
| Pcfemas |
b
o
L
| —
Foor badow
Moo balow:

ERHE S

] s ] o
0 a
=]
L am
™ ™ ’99.*
=
m gg
B
&
-} =] =)
4
Rt
Pl

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

QG
i g
i B
n
g
[r—
ourga rwrge
v 8okl cicony
- =
Fociwracs
i =0 Larciacars
Bk s
ot A A
e

|y

e i,y e ma

Ery. Aparimant Types

1 (Bad 1 Parmon

1 Bad 2 Parzon

2 Had 3 Pemon

3 Bad 8 Purmon

oooono

|
X

ol
TET obed

i

T
e -

[e——
Heworth Green, York

Sy T

B1 B2 - Lewel 05 GA Plan

[r—

21040 - FEL— ZZ 03— Dfi— A— 2003




Survey, Stn estgatons, Planning2nc Stautony Racuirmints 1 ApOrovlz.
Ao oo o Crgance Sy Map Wi parTision o e Creroter o

[ e—

Crown Copyight ressrved. Fuze S Liviaed Copyright.

noTe

Roof Plan

irformason provided by he Design Team.

KEY

Roof Type 2
Single piy raof

Heigh of parapet

Top of parapet above roof finish level 1230mm

Top of parapet above roof finish level 1260mm

Top of parapet above roof finish level 1290mm

= =~ Top of parapet above roof firish level 590mm
Top of parapet above roof firish level 560mm
= =~ Top of parapet above roof firish level 535mm
— =~ — Top of parapet above raof irih level 230mm
— — — — Top of parapet bove raof iroh level 200mm
Glage balustrade
[ P—
i @
I
I
: Revision Desoription lasued by Dee
i I
I P! Client Review cH k- w
i Poeving
P2 P oz
: et 2 =N
I P4 Planning lzue. o 221
I
Heigh of parapet
f Sbove FEL 200mem
I ||
I Il
1 |
I |
I Il
I U
I ||
I Il
1 |
I igh of parapet
: | above FFL 530mm
Il
U
U
||
Height 585mm !
above FFL: il
‘Smoke shaft| Il
win extract !
- T
i 1|
i B |
i i 1|
i | i : w m  wm
I i — I I 1
i | | [—
f Il
f : Il Project Name:
| T s ofparopet | f— Heoh of parapet Heworth Green, York
I H FFLI I | swore L1280
! i : f Drmwing T
| | | | B1 B2 - Roof Plan
i | B
i
I | i B Deing Murmber:
-_— B PLANT
CITY OF | | 21040~ FSL-ZZ~ RF~ DR~ A-2006
|| : Dima fo overall extents.
[

— ‘Smoke extract (7No) (B1 & B2) 3288mm(w) x 1200mm(d) x 845mmih) o
AC condenger (1Na) (B2 only) 1750mmiw) x 740mmi(d) x 1858(h) Weat One
Building B1 Roof Plan Building B2 Roof Plan A corsender {4o) (1 & B2) 800mm(w) x 285me(d) x 5001 R 151 18
Tel+44 (0) 113 880 0770
—

above plan allow for 2 i

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022 et

fuge-studics.com




e

i s e
pe—mr————

Page 133

i

PR [ e o
o [
S, BRI
=24 AN | A
_ ;
CIOTE |t e fh
T it
CEETE | ek | Hiinice
CmOT O L |
COOTL | U )
Coors Ymmozme
HCmoT M P e IR
[N [N N [ = AL gk il sl
E e IH == a A
il J g el — ) i~
g I o =i =l m
- HIEIH F H=E— ]
L L 1 EESEE I
e ] [ I
mw||++|_ﬂj|__| ol ) o L e
Uk HIE =m0 T T
o BILLLLILL == =
(I T 1 17 ] m_ = I
g [ e I mUDBﬂlﬂ
N TN e paa -+
ﬂ o o o o Llﬂ% ﬂ|r| B 1 s 0 o 1 e %
e
| i
3, Wﬁk[iw |73
w_m T _ _ _ _ _ T ._m ,im .? _ ,_m i N _ v_ﬁ .vf n_m -_ L It
: -
= ° 0
: 0
LU v Y
! L7
" 4
S N
m

City of York Council Planning Eommitee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

c Elevation
1: 100

COUNCIL

,




prr—r—r—y

o i s
e P sty

Page 134

j

=

—

[ =IEE
ol B A
o
| ]
L]

]

a[B=lB=l=
I Il |
[ =
HHE-2hE
H==E
=T
==
LR
i o
_ HEHEe=kE
e e

Lm L@ Lptlm

L |
L EEEEE
@ THTAE =IF
CRNNTY== . ==
EERSE R R P

fl=B={i={N=

LT LT G Ty T

ST
I R N

||

bl Wl

AN | S

m A |-

S——

[ s [
I
(R [
[ [
HEBE=E
(NN [N
NN [ [ -
I = ==
[ [
[T NN

=L L B
D

I
|
T e

L__ | ____ _ ___
[— I

e o
= OB TEE]
o = BLIZNAL e

TR | A T
HAl [HE=
[l e

— TN =1T

e | N A

(= o s E

i

L | Hl

[ |_|___|_|_|__|

o i P ol . .
w_m m_m mim Lm i m_m m_m

L I A

L _
(4 Eldl=
Iy | W

—=

b FEE=
T IO
U B | =
T M
B

=
ﬂ;J34

I firivi

£

=

‘'m Lm Lm

Zbuncil Planning Committee Meeting - 3rd November 2022

:

=
Citgof Yo

g

=
|

L

o 8, al, af, B 5 [
LI |- I [ . ] L.. i

|
A

Block 2 —
Elevations (1)

R Y Y|

Elevation C - Community Green
LR

COUNCIL



i M Page 135 [
Ll (
; MRS
ﬂl_| i
“ﬂLl _II_II_II._|_I% _.__4._:_ [ . __.L__l._:_
| g EI L P
Pl il =l = LIt =,
B g T
Bhdh b FInf Hp
SR . .
N i | AN
T T A e o e M 3
g7 Bl - M
1 DT NEEEEN. :
Tl :
I N :
S I Y S iy P | E
(=[N 3
BT E BN :
] S Ll ] E
L ol 1 o 2 5
i s = ﬁﬂ%ﬂu 2
EIHIERRE —F=  TFE | m
FE ™ 4 e :
B 5 TmF I 1 S
== SR :
= — 3 °
L W = i (B0 0| T 5
I == ﬂBMEM
[ o el
O o e . = mjm s
S, | ===
Ln m_“ m_m H_“ mm_m mmm H_w _m ._m ,_m ,_m m il m_m
I I T N N | N T [

Elevations (2)

Block 2 —

'YORK

%

COUNCIL

%,




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/09/2022 Planning Committee A
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 05/10/2022 Planning Committee A 16:30
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 05/10/2022 Planning Committee A 19:00
	Minutes


	4a Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster Business Park Harwood Road Upper Poppleton [21/02804/FULM]
	21-02804-FULM Pavers Ltd Northminster Business Park  Site Plan
	21-02804-FULM Pavers Ltd Northminster Business Park Presentation

	4b Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster Business Park Harwood Road Upper Poppleton [22/01555/FULM]
	22_01555_FULM Pavers Ltd Office Site Plan
	22_01555_FULM Pavers Ltd Office Presentation

	4c Former Gas Works Heworth Green York [22/01281/REMM]
	22_01281_REMM  Zone B Former Gas Works Site Plan
	22_01281_REMM  Zone B Former Gas Works Presentation


